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BOARDS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
Godrej Capital Limited

Your Directors submit their 5 Annual Report along with the Audited Accounts for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

a. Financial Results

The Company's performance during the financial year ended March 31, 2024, as compared to
the previous financial year ended March 31, 2023, is summarized below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the Financial year ended as | For the Financial year ended as
on on
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Standalone | Consolidated Standalone| Consolidated
Total Income 52.72 88,918.84 159.34 34,690.81
Total Expenditure 141.62 83,916.12 165.29 37,792.46
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (88.90) 5,002.72 (5.95) (3,101.65)
Tax Expense Nil Nil 9.73 10.12
Net Profit/(Loss) after (88.90) 5,002.72 (15.68) (3,111.77)
Tax

b. Business Performance Highlights and State of Company’s affairs

The Company is a Core Investment Company (“CIC”) exempt from registration with the
Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) in line with Para 6 of Master Direction - Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, which exempts CICs which have not accessed any
public funds, from registering themselves as a CIC with RBI.

The main business of the Company is to primarily hold investments within the group entities.
As part of the business strategy, the Group aims to nurture the financial services business under
the umbrella of Godrej Industries Limited through the Company, its subsidiary.

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company invested Rs. ~148 Crores and Rs. ~800 Crores
respectively in Godrej Housing Finance Limited (“GHFL”) and Godrej Finance Limited
(“GFL"), wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.
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There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year under
review.

¢. Disclosure regarding Holding, Subsidiary, Associates and Joint Venture Companies

The Company is a subsidiary of Godrej Industries Limited (“GIL”). GHFL and GFL are wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The Company did not have any associate or joint venture company.

As required under Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, a statement
containing salient features of the financial statements of GHFL and GFL as on March 31, 2024 in
form AOC-1 has been attached herewith as Annexure A.

d. Dividend

In view of loss incurred during the financial year under review, the Board of Directors have not
recommended any dividend for the year.

e. Transfer to Reserves

In view of loss incurred during the financial year under review, the Board of Directors have not
recommended transfer of any amount to reserves.

f. Public Deposits

Your Company has not accepted, renewed, or held any public deposits during the financial year
under review and shall not accept any deposits from the public during FY 2024-25.

Accordingly, the requirements under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read
with Rule 8(5)(v) and 8(5)(vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, are not
applicable to the Company.

g. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company has not given any loans covered under Section 186 of the Act.

However, the Company has made investments in the securities of its wholly owned subsidiary
companies viz. GHFL and GFL in its ordinary course of business.

Details of said investments made by the Company have been covered under Notes to the
Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March
31, 2024.

Further, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 29, 2023 approved issue of
corporate guarantee for an amount not exceeding Rs. 250 Crores in favor of National Housing
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Bank (“NHB") as security for refinance assistance of Rs. 250 Crores extended by NHB to GHFL,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. There has been no demand for enforcement of the
security.

h. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All contracts / arrangement / transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year
under review with related parties were on an arm'’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business.

Details of transactions with related parties during the financial year under review are provided
under Notes to the Audited Financial Statements.

There were no transactions requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the
prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form a part of this Report.

2. SHARE CAPITAL AND CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDING:

a. Authorized Share Capital of the Company

The Authorized Share Capital as on March 31, 2024, stood at Rs. 50,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Lakhs
only) divided into 5,00,000 (Five Lakh) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only)
each.

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company

As on March 31, 2024, the Issued capital of the Company was Rs 33,98,830/- (Rupees Thirty-
Three Lakh Ninety-Eight Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty only) divided into 3,39,883
(Three Lakh Thirty-Nine Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty-Three) Equity Shares of face
value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

Further, the subscribed and paid-up share capital as on March 31, 2024, was Rs 33,29,780/-
(Rupees Thirty-Three Lakh Twenty-Nine Thousand Seven Hundred and Eighty only) divided
into 3,32,978 (Three Lakh Thirty-Two Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy-Eight) Equity
Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

¢. Changes in Paid up Share Capital of the Company during the year

As on March 31, 2023, the paid-up capital structure of the Company comprised of 2,45,496 equity
shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each.

During the financial year under review, the Company has made following allotments to its
existing equity shareholders on Rights basis:
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1. Godrej Industries Limited, holding company:
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_Sr. No | Date of allotment

No. of equity shares of
face value of Rs. 10/- each

Total Consideration (incl
premium of Rs. 1,08,546/- per

3 B allotted equity share)
1. | June 2, 2023 30,635 Rs. 332,56,13,060
. | September 21,2023 | 26,251 Rs. 284,97,03,556
3. | February 29,2024 | 26,229 Rs. 284,73,15,324

2. PAN FIN Investments LP:

Sr. No | Date of allotment

No. of equity shares of
face value Rs. 10 each

Total Consideration (incl
premium of Rs. 1,08, 546/- per

allotted equity share)
1. |June 8, 2023 1,607 Rs. 17,44,49,492
2. | September 28, 2023 1,380 Rs. 14,98,07,280
3. | February 29, 2024 1,380 Rs. 14,98,07,280

As on March 31, 2024, and as on date of this Report, Godrej Industries Limited and PAN FIN
Investments LP hold 89.48% and 5% of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company,
respectively.

During the financial year under review, the Company has not:

e Issued Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise as per
Section 43 of the Act,

e Issued shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
scheme pursuant to Section 54 of the Act; and

o Issued Equity Shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme as per provisions of Section
62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014, as amended.

. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEMES:

Equity based compensation is considered to be an integral part of employee compensation
across sectors which enables alignment of personal goals of the employees with organizational
objectives. Your Company believes that equity-based compensation plans are an effective tool
to reward the employees of the Company for their contribution to the growth of the Company,
to create an employee ownership in the Company, to attract new talents, to retain the key
resources and knowledge in the organization.

With this objective in mind, the Company has implemented the following schemes for benefit
of present and future permanent employees of the Company and its subsidiaries:
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* Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2021
The Members had vide resolution passed at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on
January 5, 2021 approved Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2021.

Pursuant to the aforesaid scheme, as on March 31, 2024, the Company has granted 2,794
options to eligible employees of which 591 options have lapsed and 2,203 Options are active.

Disclosure as required to be given pursuant to Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12
of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended are enclosed as
Annexure B.

* GCL Employee Stock Option Scheme 2022
The Members had vide resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on June 1, 2022
approved GCL Employee Stock Option Scheme 2022.

Pursuant to the aforesaid scheme, as on March 31, 2024, the Company has granted 2,069
options to eligible employees of which 263 options have lapsed and as on date 1,806 options
are active.

Disclosure as required to be given pursuant to Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12
of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as amended are enclosed as
Annexure B.

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND COMMITTEES:

a. Board of Directors

The composition of the Board is in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, with
an appropriate combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Director.

The Board comprises of adequate number of members with diverse experience and skills, such
that it best serves the governance and strategic needs of the Company. The present composition
meets this objective. The directors are people of eminence in areas such as business, industry,
finance, law, administration etc., and bring with them experience / skills which add value to the
performance of the Board.

The Directors are selected purely on basis of merit with no discrimination on race, color, religion,
gender or nationality.

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company comprise of following Directors:

Name of Director DIN Type
Mr. Pirojsha Godrej 00432983 Non-Executive Chairperson
Mr. Mathew Eipe* 00027780 Independent Director
Mr. Manish Shah 06422627 Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Clement Pinto 06575412 Non-Executive Director
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*Appointed as an Independent Director with effect from October 31, 2023

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
October 31, 2023, appointed Mr. Mathew Eipe as an Additional Director (Independent category)
on the Board of the Company for a tenure of 3 (three) consecutive years and 7 (seven) months
i.e., with effect from October 31, 2023 to June 6, 2027, subject to approval of the Members of the
Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

Therefore, necessary resolutions seeking approval of members for the appointment of Mr.
Mathew Eipe as an Independent Director of the Company forms part of the Notice convening
the 5t AGM.

The appointment of Mr. Mathew Eipe as an Independent Director of the Company was made in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Further, the Board is of the opinion that Mr. Mathew Eipe possess requisite qualifications,
experience, and expertise and that he holds highest standards of integrity in terms of Section
149 and 150 of the Act, read with Schedule IV and the Companies (Appointment & Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended. He has registered himself with the data bank of
Independent Directors created and maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs,
(“IICA”) Manesar.

Further, pursuant to Section 150 of the Act, read with Companies (Appointment & Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, Mr. Mathew is exempt from undertaking online
proficiency self-assessment test.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Director are available on the website
of the Company at https://www.godrejcapital.com/information-

During the year under review, there were no pecuniary relationships /transactions of any Non-
Executive Directors with the Company apart from sitting fees paid to Independent Director for
attending Board Meeting(s).

Details of sitting fees paid to Mr. Mathew Eipe, Independent Director during financial year 2023-
24 has been furnished in Form MGT-7.

b. Director’s Disclosures

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the provisions of the Act and
such other applicable laws, none of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being
appointed as Directors.
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Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Act, the Company has received requisite declarations from Mr.
Mathew Eipe, Independent Director of the Company affirming compliance with the criteria of
independence as specified under Section 149(6) of the Act.

Mr. Mathew Eipe has also confirmed compliance with provisions of rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of
his name in the databank of Independent Directors.

Further, the Company has issued formal letter of appointment to Mr. Mathew Eipe, Independent
Director in the manner provided under the Act.

¢. Retirement by Rotation

Section 152 of the Act provides that unless the Articles of Association provide for the retirement
of all directors at every AGM, not less than two-third of the total number of directors of a public
company (excluding the Independent Directors) shall be persons whose period of office is liable
to determination by retirement of directors by rotation, of which one-third are liable to retire by
rotation.

Accordingly, Mr. Pirojsha Godrej, Non-Executive Chairperson will retire by rotation at the
ensuing AGM of the Company and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

The Board of Directors recommend his appointment, and the matter is being placed for seeking
approval of members at the ensuing AGM of the Company.

d. Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”)

In accordance with provisions of Section 203 of the Act and Rules made thereunder, the KMPs
of the Company as on March 31, 2024, are as under:

Name Designation b
Mr. Manish Shah Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Kunal Karnani Chief Financial Officer

There was no change in the KMP of the Company during the financial year under review.
e. The disclosures under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:

* All elements of remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options,
pension, etc., of all the Directors. Details of fixed component and performance linked
incentives along with the performance criteria:

» None of the Directors draw any remuneration from the Company. Mr. Manish Shah,
Managing Director & Chief Executive officer draws remuneration from GHFL, Subsidiary
Company.
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> Details of sitting fees paid to Mr. Mathew Eipe, Independent Director for attending Board
meeting(s) during financial year under review, are provided under MGT-7, copy of the
said Annual Return shall be made available on the website of the Company at
https:/ / www.godrejcapital.com/information-and-policy-gc.html.

¢ Service contracts, notice period, severance fees: Not applicable.

¢ Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as
the period over which accrued and over which exercisable:

No stock options have been granted to Mr. Manish Shah, Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer by the Company.

f. Disclosure pursuant to Section 197(14) of the Act:

Mr. Manish Shah, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company has received
gross salary of Rs 4,23,84,386/- from GHFL, wholly owned subsidiary for the financial year
2023-24.

g. Disclosure pursuant to Section 197 (12) of the Act

The information required to be incorporated pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the
Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended, in respect of employees of the Company is not applicable
to the Company.

h. Committees of the Board

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Act, the Company has constituted Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee. Composition of CSR committee as on March 31, 2024 is as

below:

Sr. Name of Members Designation in the Committee
No

1. | Mr. Manish Shah, Managing Director & Chief | Chairperson
Executive Officer
2. | Mr. Mathew Eipe, Independent Director Member
3. | Mr. Clement Pinto, Non-Executive Director Member

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on October
31, 2023, reconstituted the CSR Commiittee to indict Mr. Mathew Eipe, Independent Director as
a member of the Committee, in terms of provisions of Section 135 of the Act.

During the financial year under review, your Company was not required to constitute an Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee
in terms of provisions of Section 177 and 178 of the Act.
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5. MATTERS RELATED TO BOARD / COMMITTEE MEETINGS, POLICIES AND OTHER

RELATED DISCLOSURES

. Board Meetings

Table containing details of Board Meetings held during financial year 2023-24 along with dates

is as follows:

No

S. Title of Body

No. of Meeting(s)

Date of Meeting(s)

1. Board of Directors

5 (Five)

May 4, 2023

Gk W

August 3, 2023
September 29, 2023
QOctober 31, 2023
January 23, 2024

The maximum gap between two Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days
or such gap as permitted under the provisions of the Act. Requisite quorum was present in each

meeting.

The AGM for the financial year 2022-23 was held on May 29, 2023, at the Registered office of the

Company.

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and the last AGM is given under:

Names of Directors Category No. of Board Meetings | Attendance
Held Attended | at Last
during AGM held
Director’s on May 29,
tenure 2023

Mr. Pirojsha Godrej Non-Executive Director & | 5 5 No

Chairperson
Mr. Manish Shah Managing Director & 5 5 Yes
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Clement Pinto Non-Executive Director 4 Yes

Mr. Mathew Eipe Independent Director 1 1 No

(Appointed w.e.f. October

31, 2023)

b. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors, based on the representations received from the operational management,
confirm in pursuance to provisions of Section 134(5) of the Act, that:
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e that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any,

e that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and such
judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the loss of the Company for that period,

e that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company, for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,

» that the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis,

¢ that the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively,

e that proper systems are in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

c. Policies

The Company has adopted various policies pursuant to applicable laws and business /
governance requirements, from time to time and the same has been approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Company conducts review of all policies of the Company on annual basis to incorporate
amendments, if any required pursuant to regulatory / business requirements.

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

In accordance with Section 135 of the Act, the Company has adopted Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy, which is available on the website of the Company at

https://www.godrejcapital.com/information-and-policy-gc.html.

The Company is yet to make profits, thus it does not fall under category of mandatory spending
under CSR as per the Act. Further, once the Company falls under the category of mandatory
spending under CSR, the Company would identify the suitable CSR projects/activities in line
with CSR Policy.

Salient features of the policy include:

- Purpose and policy statement including the rationale for adoption of CSR Policy,

- Roles and responsibilities of Board of Directors, such as approving CSR Policy, monitoring
the implementation of CSR projects/activities with reference to the approved timelines and
year-wise allocation and make modifications, if any, for smooth implementation of the
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project/activity within the overall permissible time period (as and when Company falls
under the category of mandatory spending under CSR), taking into account the
recommendations of the CSR Committee,

- Roles and responsibilities of CSR Committee, such as to formulate CSR Policy indicating the
projects/activities to be undertaken by Company as per regulatory requirements and
recommend the same to the Board, monitor the implementation of the CSR Policy from time
to time, etc.

- Principles guiding CSR initiatives and contributions.

During the financial year under review, there were no amendment made to the CSR Policy.

An annual report on activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, has been appended as Annexure C to this Report.

d. Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place adequate financial controls commensurate with its size, scale and
complexity of operations with reference to its financial statements. These have been designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding recording and providing financial information,
ensuring integrity in conducting business, accuracy and completeness in maintaining
accounting records, prevention and detection of frauds and errors.

e. Internal Control Systems

The Company has instituted adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature
of its business and the size of its operations.

Further, there were no elements of risk during the financial year under review which would
affect the existence of the Company.

f. Copy of Annual Return

In terms of provisions of Section 92 of the Act read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, as amended ,the copy of Annual Return of the Company in form
MGT-7 is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.godrejcapital.com/information- i

g- Confirmation on Fraud, misfeasance or any irregularity in the Company

There were no instances of fraud, misfeasance or irregularity detected and reported in the
Company during the financial year 2023-24.
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6. AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS:

The matters related to Auditors and their Reports are as under:

a. Statutory Auditors

The Board of Directors of the Company had at their Meeting held on August 31, 2020 approved
appointment of M/s. Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No.104607W/W100166) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the
conclusion of the 1% (First) AGM until the conclusion of the 6t (Sixth) AGM of the Company, to
be held in the year 2025 which was subsequently approved by the Members at the 1t (First)
AGM of the Company held on September 2, 2020.

b. Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Statutory Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements issued by M/s. Kalyaniwalla &
Mistry LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 104607W/W100166), for the financial
year ended on March 31, 2024, does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark
or disclaimer. The Notes to the accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory
and therefore do not call for any further clarifications under Section 134(3)(f) of the Act.

¢. Fraud Reporting

There has been no instance of fraud reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Act
and the Rules framed thereunder, either to the Company or to the Central Government.

d. Secretarial Audit

As the Company is a material unlisted subsidiary of GIL as per Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the Company is
required to conduct secretarial audit.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors have appointed M/s Rathi and Associates, Company
Secretaries (Membership No.: FCS 8568; Certificate of Practice No.: 10286) to undertake
secretarial audit of the Company for financial year 2023-24.

The Secretarial Audit Report for financial year 2023-24 is appended as Annexure D to this
Report and same was noted by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on April 30, 2024

The aforesaid report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or
disclaimers and therefore does not call for any explanation or comments from the Board.
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7. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

a. Conservation of Energy & Technology absorption:

There is no information to disclose under the head ‘Conservation of Energy and Technology
Absorption’ as the Company is engaged in carrying on business of an investment company.
However, the Company understands the importance of energy conservation from the
perspective of protection of the environment.

b. Foreign Exchange and Earnings / Outgo:

(Rs in Lakhs.)

For the Financial year For the Financial
ended as on year ended as on
31t March 2024 31+t March 2023

Actual Foreign Exchange earnings S s
Actual Foreign Exchange outgo - -

8. THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION, AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company does not have any employees as on date thus provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the Company. However, GHFL and GFL, wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company have
adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace
and have also constituted an Internal Committee in line with provisions of the said Act and the
rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at workplace.

9. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

Your Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of
Directors (“55-1”) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

10. GENERAL:

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there were no transactions pertaining to these items during the year under review:

*  Obtained any registration / license / authorization, by whatever name called from any other
financial sector regulators.
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*  Significant material changes and commitments between the end of financial year of the
Company and the date of the Report which could affect the Company's financial position
except those contained herein.

*  Penalties levied by any regulators during the year under review.

*  Revision of the financial statements of the previous years during the financial year under
review.

*  Exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly by employees under a
scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act.

*  Significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact
the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

*  Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act,

* Statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation of the performance of
the Board, its committees and of individual Directors has been made,

*  Application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (31 of 2016) during the year under review,

*  The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof.

11._ ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors take this opportunity to express their sincere gratitude to the customers for their
confidence and patronage; to the shareholders, regulatory bodies, for their unyielding support
and guidance; and to the employees for their commitment, hard work and zeal during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Godrej Capital Limited

Pirojsha Godrej
Chairperson
DIN: 00432983

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 06422627

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2024

Registered Office:

Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway,
Vikhroli (East), Mumbai 400 079

CIN: U67100MH2019PLC330262

Tel No.: 022 68815555
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Annexure A
Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or
associate companies or Joint ventures

Part A: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. Lakhs.)

Name of the subsidiary Godrej Housing Finance Limited

The date since when subsidiary was acquired August 24, 2021

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if
different from the holding company's reporting -
period.

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last NA
date of the relevant financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries.

Share capital Rs. 34,182.11
Reserves and Surplus Rs. 56,241.28
Total assets Rs. 5,79,994.11
Total Liabilities Rs. 489,570.72
Investments Rs. 9313.10
Turnover Rs. 49,063.01
Profit before taxation Rs. 8,012.39
Provision for taxation INil

Profit after taxation Rs. 8,012.39
Proposed Dividend -

Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100




Name of the subsidiary Godrej Finance Limited
The date since when subsidiary was acquired August 24, 2021
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if i
different from the holding company's reporting period.
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last
] . . NA
date of the relevant financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries. :
Share capital Rs.91,818.66

Reserves and surplus

Rs. 33,420.60

Total assets Rs. 517,602.38
Total Liabilities Rs. 392,363.12
‘Investments Nil

Turnover Rs. 39,803.13

Profit / Loss before taxation

Rs. (2,920.57)

Provision for taxation

Nil

Profit / Loss after taxation

Rs. (2,920.57)

Proposed Dividend

[Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NIL
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year — NIL

Part B: Associates and Joint Venture- Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Godrej Capital Limited

irojsha Godrej
Chairperson
DIN: 00432983
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2024

Registered Office:

N

Manish Shah
Managing Director and CEO
DIN: 06422627

Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli

(East), Mumbai 400 079
CIN: U67100MH2019PLC330262
Tel No.: 022 68815555
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Annexure C

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) [Pursuant to Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

As required under Section 135(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details with respect to CSR are as follows:

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

The Company has prepared the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (“CSR Policy”) in
alignment with its objective, principles and values, delineating its responsibility as a socially
and environmentally responsible corporate citizen. This CSR Policy lays down the principles
and mechanisms for undertaking various programs in accordance with the requirements
provided under Section 135 of The Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”), read with Schedule VII
to the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, as amended along with subsequent amendments.

The Board of the Directors of the Company has approved this CSR Policy, on
recommendation by the CSR Committee, on August 4, 2022. Any or all provisions of this CSR
Policy are subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, and any subsequent amendments
thereof made from time to time.

During the financial year under review, there were no amendment made to the CSR Policy.

) b 4

2. Composition of CSR Committee

Sr. No Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of
Nature of meetings meetings
Directorship of CSR of CSR
Committee Committee
held attended
during the during the
year year
1. Mr. Manish Shah | Managing Director 0 0
& Chief Executive
Officer
2. Mr. Mathew Eipe* Independent 0 0
Director
3. Mr. Clement Pinto Non-Executive 0 0
Director

*Mr. Mathew Eipe was indicted as a member of the Committee w.e.f. October 31, 2023

3. Web-link where the following are disclosed on the website of the Company:

a. Composition of
https://www.godrejcapital.com/information-and-policy-gc.html.

CSR Committee

and

CSR Policy:

b. CSR Projects approved by Board: The Company does not fall under the category of
mandatory spending for CSR as per the Act, as the Company is yet to make profits.

(4



<)
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24 ﬁ‘, ,y

Further, once the Company falls under the category of mandatory spending for CSR,
the Company would identify the suitable CSR projects/activities in line with CSR
Policy. The Company will also establish a robust project/activity monitoring and
evaluation mechanism for such CSR spends to ensure that every project/activity is in
accordance with the requirements under the Act.

4. Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): NA

5. (a) Average Net Profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Rs. (2,86,54,025)

(b) Two percent of Average Net Profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. (5,73,081)

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Nil

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
NA
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]- Nil
(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: Nil

[Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spentforthe 1101 Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
inancial Year (in Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VII as per second proviso
) sub- section (6) of section 135. o sub-section (5) of section 135
IAmount Date of transfer = [Name of the [Amount ate of transfer
Fund
NA
(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:
SI. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
® Two percent of average net profit of the company as [Rg (5,73,081)
per section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NA
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NA
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or NA
programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if
any
v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial [NA
years [(iii)-(iv)]
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7. Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not applicable.
The Company was not required to spend amounts towards CSR activities as per Act.

Sr. | Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount Amount Deficiency,
No. | financial | transferred | Amount spent transferred remaining | if any
year to Unspent | In in the to any fund |to
CSR Unspent | reporting | specified be spent in
Account CSR financial | under Schedule | succeeding
under Account year VII as financial
Section under (inRs.) | per Section 135(6), | years
135 (6) subsection if any (in Rs.)
(in Rs.) (6) of
Section Amount | Date of
135 (inRs.) | transfer
(in Rs.)
NA

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent in
the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per sub-section (5) of Section 135: NA

)
=

Z, / 2,
A
4!4’1*”/"

" Pirojsha Godrej
Chairperson of the Boar
DIN: 00432983

MD&CEO and Chairperson of the Committee
DIN: 06422627

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2024



Annexure D

Rathi & Associates

COMPANY SECRETARIES

A-303, Prathamesh, 3rd Floor Raghuvanshi Mills Compound, 11-12, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel {W), Mumbai - 400 013,
Tel.: 4076 4444 / 2491 1222 » Fax : 4076 4466 * E-mail - associates rathi8@gmail.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2024

To,

The Members

Godrej Capital Limited

Godrej One, Pirojshanagar,
Eastern Express Highway,
Vikhroli (East),

Mumbai —400 079

Dear Sirs,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Godrej Capital Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company™). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers. agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31* March, 2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company as given in Annexure I, for the financial year ended on 31® March,
2024, according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under to the extent applicable;
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye - laws framed thereunder;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (applicable to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment);

2. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) were not applicable to the Company during the

audit period under report viz.:

i. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and rules made
thercunder;

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations. 2015;




iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations. 2015;

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

vil.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021;

viii.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

ix. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations. 1993, regarding dealing with client; and

X. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021;

3. We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test- check basis, no
other Acts, Laws and Regulations are applicable specifically to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions of Companies Act,
2013.

During the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.,

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non- Executive
Directors, Executive Director and Independent Director. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

None of the directors have communicated dissenting views, in the matters/agenda proposed from time
to time for consideration of the Board and its Committees thereof. during the year under the report,
hence were not required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
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regulations and guidelines.

As regards, events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations. guidelines, standards, etc.:

(i)  The following Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each on Rights basis, ranking pari passu with
the existing Equity Shares of the Company, at a premium of Rs. 1,08,546/- per Equity Share to the
existing Shareholders of the Company:

(ii)  The Shareholders of the Company, at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 29" May,
2023 approved. Amendment to the Articles of Association of the Company for amending the
existing Article of Association of the Company by introducing Part B-Amending Articles
i.e. Article 90 to 99.

For RATHI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Nghast

NEHA R LAHOTY

' PARTNER
Place: Mumbai M. NO. FCS 8568
Date: April 30,2024 C.P. No. 10286

UDIN: F0O08568F000271369
P.R. Certificate No.: 668/2020

Date of Allotment No. of Equity Issue price Total Consideration
Shares (including Premium) per | (in Rs.)
Share (in Rs.) -

02 June, 2023 . 30,635 1,08,556 3,32,56,13,060
08" June, 2023 1,607 1,08,556 17,44,49,492
21 September, 2023 [ 26,251 1,08,556 2,84,97,03,556
28" September, 2023 | 1,380 1,08,556 14,98,07,280 |
29" February, 2024 27,609 1,08,556 2,99,71,22,604
Total R 87,482 9,49,66,95,992

(g



ANNEXURE -1

List of d ified

—

12.

13.

14.

Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company.

Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees held during the financial year
under report along with Attendance Register.

Proof of circulation & Delivery of notice for Board meetings and Committee Meetings.

Proof of circulation of draft Board and Committee meetings minutes as per Secretarial
Standards.

Various policies made under the Companies Act, 2013.

Copies of Notice, Agenda and Notes to Agenda submitted to all the directors / members for the
Board Meetings and Committee Meetings as well as resolutions passed by circulation;

Minutes of General Body Meetings held during the financial year under report.

Statutory registers applicable to the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

. Agenda papers submitted to all the Directors/members for the Board Meetings.
. Declarations/Disclosures received from the Directors/ Chief Financial Officer of the Company

pursuant to the provisions of Section 184(1) and Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.
e-Forms filed by the Company from time to time under applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and attachments thereof during the financial year under report.

Statement of Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company during the financial year
under report;

Details of Sitting Fees paid to all Non - Executive Directors for attending the Board Meetings and
Committees.



ANNEXURE - I

To
The Members
Godrej Capital Limited Mumbai

Dear Sirs,
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices that we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For RATHI & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

N phast el

NEHA R LAHOTY
PARTNER
M. No. FCS 8568
C.P. No. 10286
Place: Mumbai UDIN: F008568F000271369
Date: April 30, 2024 P.R. Certificate No.: 668/2020



GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024



KALYANIWALLA
& MISTRY LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members Of
Godrej Capital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Godrej Capital Limited (“the
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries “Godrej Capital Limited Employee Stock Option Trust”,
“Godrej Finance Limited” and “Godrej Housing Finance Limited” (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of report of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matter
paragraph below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, the
consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its

consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statenients under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained along with the consideration of audit report of the other auditor referred to in the
Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

_ Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance

{j:’dﬁ"ij‘@ ur audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
\y mddiessed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in

It Vi) . . .
i l?g our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
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determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
Impairment of financial assets as at the | Audit procedures with respect to this matter
balance sheet date (Expected Credit Loss) — | included the following:
housing finance business

e Understood and assessed the Company’s

As described in Note no 2.11.A on Material accounting policies for impairment of
Accounting Policies, Note 4, 10 and 29 of the financial assets and their compliance with Ind
Financial Statements. AS 109 and the governance framework

approved by the Board of Directors pursuant
One of the subsidiary’s auditor has determined to Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

that the allowance for Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) on loan assets has a high degree of | ¢ Discussed with the management and

estimation uncertainty, with a potential range of evaluated the reasonableness of the
reasonable outcomes for the financial management estimates by understanding the
statements. process of ECL estimation and related

assumptions including factors that affect the
Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for PD, LGD and EAD and tested the controls
impairment  of its loans and advances around data extraction and validation.
(designated at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income) using the | Reconciled the total loans considered for ECL
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL assessment with the books of accounts to
involves an estimation of probability-weighted ensure the completeness.

loss on financial instruments over their life,
considering  reasonable and  supportable | o Tested categorization of Inan poartfalin inta
Information  about past events, current different segments.

conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit quality | , Tested the arithmetical accuracy of

of the Company’s loans and advances: computation of ECL provision.

In the process, significant degree of judgement e Assessed disclosures included in the financial
has been applied by the management: statements in respect of expected credit

. . losses.
¢ Grouping of borrowers based on homogeneity

by using appropriate statistical techniques;
» Staging of Loans

 In absence of sufficiently long history and
adequate number of defaults in company’s
own data, estimation of Probability of default
(PD) is carried out using Logistic Regression
model using a Bureau data obtained from
Experian on a lookalike portfolio considering
various factors like Ticket Size, Location,
Age, Peer Institution.

¢ Determination of Loss Given Default (LGD)
= lasand Exposure at Default (EAD).
\ 2 = N

A
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In view of requirement of several data inputs
and High management judgements in estimation
of ECL, it is a key audit matter.

Impairment of financial assets as at the
balance sheet date (Expected Credit Loss) —
in respect of loans and advances business

One of the subsidiary’s auditor has determined
that the allowance for Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) on loan and advances assets has a high
degree of estimation uncertainty.

Refer Note 4, 10 and 29 to the Financial
Statements

Since the loans and advances form a major
portion of the subsidiary’s assets, and due to the
significance of the judgments used in
classifying loans and advances into various
stages as stipulated in Indian Accounting
Standard (IND AS) 109 and the management
estimation of the related impairment provisions.
this is considered to be a key audit matter.

The subsidiary’s impairment allowance is

derived from estimates including the historical

default and loss ratios. Management exercises

Judgement in dctermining the quantum of loss

based on a range of factors

The most significant areas are:

- Segmentation of loan book

- Determination of exposure at default

- Loan staging criteria

- Calculation of probability of default / Loss
given default

The application of ECL model requires several
data inputs. This increases the risk of
completeness and accuracy of the data that has
been used to create assumptions in the model.

s We

* We evaluated management’s controls over

evaluated appropriateness of the
impairment principles used by management
based on the requirements of Ind AS 109 and
our business understanding.

e We assessed the design and implementation
of controls over loan impairment process used
to calculate the impairment charge.

collation of relevant information used for
determining estimates for management
overlays.

e We tested review controls over measurement
of impairment allowances and disclosures
in financial statements.

Assessment of impairment of Goodwill

As disclosed in note 33, the Group has goodwill
of Rs 29,449.91 lakhs as at March 31, 2024
which represents goodwill acquired through
business combination and allocated to cash
generating unit of the Company.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated and to which intangible assets
belong to is tested for impairment annually, or
4 more frequently when there is an indication that
1 unit may be impaired. As disclosed in note
j| impairment of goodwill is determined by

Our audit procedures included the following:

* Obtained an understanding of the process
followed by the management to determine the
recoverable amounts of cash generating units
to which the goodwill and intangible assets
pertain to;

* We compared the future operating cash flow
forecasts with the approved business plan and
budgets;

* Evaluated the objectivity and independence of
the specialists engaged by the Company and
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assessing the recoverable amount of each cash
generating unit to which these assets relate.

Due to the significance of the carrying value of
goodwill and judgment involved in performing
impairment test, this matter was considered
significant to our audit.

reviewed the valuation reports issued by such
specialists;

* Evaluated the model used in determining the
value in use of the cash generating units;

* Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
computation of recoverable amounts of cash
generating units;

* Compared the transaction price considered for
the said subsidiary shares in the transaction
undertaken on 29 February 2024 vis a vis the
fair value that was considered initially at the
time of goodwill recognition; and

* We also assessed the disclosures provided by
the Company in relation to its annual impairment
test in note 33 to the financial statements.

Information Technology (“IT”) Systems and
Controls - housing finance business

The financial accounting and reporting
processes, especially in the financial services
sector, are fundamentally reliant on IT systems
and IT controls to process significant
voluminous transactions.

IT environment controls, which include IT
governance, general IT controls over program
development and changes, access to programs
and data and IT operations, are required to be
designed and to operate effectively to ensure
reliable financial reporting.

Hence, IT systems and IT general controls
(ITGC) are identified as a key audit matter for
the Company.

Audit procedures with respect to this matter
included the following:

e Tested the design and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s IT access controls over the
IT applications that are important to financial
reporting and other identified application
controls.

e Tested IT general controls (logical access,
changes management and aspects of IT
operational controls). This included testing
requests for access to systems were reviewed
and authorized. Tested the company’s
periodic review of access roles, user id
deactivation.

Reviewed the IS policy.

e Tested change management control. Tested
requests of changes to systems for approval
and authorization

In addition to the above, tested the design and
operating effectiveness of certain automated
controls that were considered as key internal
controls over financial reporting.

Information technology (IT) systems used in
financial reporting process - in respect of
loans and advances business

One of the Holding Company’s subsidiary’s
| operational and financial processes are
1@5:\pend6ﬂt on IT systems due to large volume of
H_'"%:nsactions that are processed daily.

Il

ded
%

Audit procedures with respect to this matter
included the following:

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s IT
control environment relevant to the audit.

Tested the design, implementation, and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s General IT
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rﬁlerefore, IT systems and controls over | controls over the key IT systems which are
financial reporting as a key audit matter for the | critical to financial reporting.

subsidiary.
Tested key automated and manual controls and

logic for system generated reports relevant to the
audit that would materially impact the financial
statements.

In addition to above, we have also relied on the
L work of the internal auditors.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

/.if,g;-‘_l e respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
/ ”—N seeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
+*
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs, will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that.
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the

consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiary companies whose financial statements
reflect total assets of INR 1,127,154.38 lakhs (before consolidation adjustments) as at March 31, 2024,
total revenues of INR 80,001.29 lakhs (before consolidation adjustments), net profit (before
consolidation adjustments) of INR 5,002.72 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to INR 35,392.17
lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by another auditor whose report has been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms
of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary
is Qﬂsed solely on the report of the other auditor.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements, below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the report of the other auditor except for the matter stated in
paragraph 1(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issucd thercunder,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
on the basis of the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary companies none of the
directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, is disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the sub-paragraph b) of paragraph 1 above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b)
and paragraph 1(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditor, as noted in the Other Matter paragraph above, we further
report that:
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iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial
position in its consolidated financial statements — Refer Note. 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Group did not have any long - term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies.

iv.(a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, whose financial

Vi,

(b)

()

statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or its subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or
its subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act have represented, that, to the best of it’s
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 44 to the accounts, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of its subsidiaries shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us on the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend during
the year ended March 31, 2024.

Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective
auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding Company and subsidiaries have
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we
and respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries did not come across any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with.
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As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the year ended March 31, 2024.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, based on the CARO report issued by us for the Holding Company and the
CARO reports issued by the auditors of the subsidiary companies, included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that
there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

(FE]

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditors, as noted in the Other Matter paragraph above,
where applicable, managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104607W/W100166

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner

Membership No.: 106548
UDIN: 24106548BKCSTO1660
Place: Mumbai

Dated: April 30, 2024
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in Para 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Godrej Capital
Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India as at March 31,
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year

ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and, both
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors referred to in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial

h

-@Fﬁ%nls of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were generally operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICALI.

Other Matter
Our aforesaid report under section 143 (3) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to a subsidiary

company is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such company.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner

Membership No.: 106548
UDIN: 24106548BKCSTO1660
Place: Mumbai

Dated: April 30, 2024




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETF AS AT MARCH 31, 2824

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Note As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
A ASSETS
Nom Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,306,86 1,006.18
Right of Use Assets 3 3,281.64 2209.16
Gooedwill 33 29,449.91 20,449.91
Other Imangible Asseis 3 6,635.67 6,007.42
Inmangible Assets Under Development 3 113.89 60.55
Financial Assets
Loans from financing activity 4 858,059.27 468.503.13
Otker Financial Assets 5 2906.28 365.10
Deferred Tax Assets (net} 34 53067 53067
Other Tax Assets {net) 34 2,151.06 35503
Crther Non Current Assets 6 288.59 121.20
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Investments 7 9.,365.69 19,524.49
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 38.3294] 73.721.58
Other Bank Balances G 2.649.56 4,046.60
Loans from financing activity 10 167,282.57 44,897.22
Other Financial Assets 11 2359¢.14 1,269.74
Other Current Assets 12 140017 709.61
TOTAL ASSETS 1,127.154.38 £52,777.59
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 33.30 2455
Other Equity 14 245 465.62 145,479.31
TOTAL EQUITY 245,498.92 145,503.86
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Bomowings 15 519,592.97 409,456 4¢
Lease Liabilities 16 2,537.96 1,600.67
Provigions 17 280.96 168.34
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 13 331,972.26 81,8109z
Lease Liabilities 19 812.37 663.62
Other Financial Liabilities 20 20,678.76 10,090.54
Trade Payables 21
Total oul.siaufimg dues of micro enterprise and 1032 45.95
small enterprises
Total outstan_dmg dues |.1f creditors .ol.her than 5.185.97 2812.43
small enterprises and micro enterprises
Other Current Liabilities 22 499.09 408.49
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 34 199.98
Provisions 23 55.79 15.89
Current Tax Liabilities (net)
TOTAL LIABILITIES $81,655.40 507,273.73
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES — 1,127.154.38 §52,771.59
Material Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an intepral part of the consolidated financial statement,

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Repistration Number 104607 WY 100166

e LY
Roshni Marfatia Manish Shah Ql:- ha Adi Godrej
Partner Managing Director & CEQ Nunlexecutlve
Chairperson
Membership Number; 106348 DIN; 06422627 DIN: 00432983
Date: Aprit 30, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Amount Rs. in Lakh})

Not For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from Operations 24 §0,001.29 28,415.12
Other Income 25 6,568.79 5,558.29
Net gam‘ on de-recognition of financial assets 25a 2.348.76 717.46
at amortized cost
Total Income $8.918.84 34,690.81
Expenses
Enmployee Benefits Expenses 26 1701046 10,064.19
Finance Costs 27 50,999.1% 19,128.21
Depreciation: and Amortisation Expenses 28 2,310.39 1,897.31
Other Expenses 29 13,096.08 6.702,75
Total Expenses _ 83,916.12 37.792.46
Praofit / (Loss) Before Tax 5,002.72 (3,101.65)
Tax Expense
Current tax 537.74
Short provision for earlier years . 10.12
Deferred Tax Credit . (537.79)
Profit / (Loss} After Tax - 500272 RERTTR])
Other Comprehensive loss
Ttems that will not be reclassifled to proflt
or loss:
-Re-measurement {losses) / Profit on
defined benefit plans (62.14 308
-Income tax effect relating to these items R (7.07)
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
z (62.14) {3.99)
Total Comprehensive (Loss) for the period 4.940.58 (3,115.76)
Profit / (Loss) attributable to the:
Owmers of the company 5,002.72 {2,956.56)
Non - Controlling Interest - (154.81)
QOther Comprehensive (Loss) attributable to the:
Owners of the company (62.14) 3.79
Non - Centrolling Interest - {0.20)
Total Comprehensive (Loss) for the period
attributable to the:
Owners of the company 4,940.58 {2,960.75)
Nan - Controlling Interest - (155.01)
Earuing / (Loss) Per Equity Share
Basic and Diluted in Rs 30 1,746.55 {1,442.10)
Face Value Per Share in Rs 10.00 10.00

Material Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the conselidated financial statement.

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

u]}""

Manish Shah

Roshni Marfatia = TFirojsha Adi Godre]
Partuer Managing Director & Non executive

CEO Chairperson
Membership Number: 106548 DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983

Date: April 30, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Kunal Karnani
CFQ




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2924
{Amoum Rs, in Lakh)

For The Year Ended For Tke Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 11, 2023
A Cash Flow from Opcrating Activities
Profit / {Loss) before tax 5,002.72 (3,101.65)
Adjustments for :
Net gain on fair value changes (1,862.83) {1.362.63)
Impairment on financial instruments 2,995.02 1,526.65
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 2,810.39 1,897.31
Intérest expenses on Lease Liabilities 220,17 148.90
Imierest income on security deposits (23.44) (15.98)
Interest income on CP (521.05) (301.40)
Interest on borrowings 50,489.01 18,888.14
Gain on Lease medification (42.30)
Interest on Inoome Tax Refund (38.64) (1237
Interest income received from fixed deposits with banks (547.49) (183.84)
{Profit)/Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 9.82 -
ESOP compensation cost 108.51 24.04
(perating Cash Flow before Working Capital Changes 58,593.89 17,507.47
Chnga in working capital
Adjustments for (increase)decrease [n opertalng assets:
(Increase) in Financial Assets (5,18,454.37) {3,35,736.30)
(Increase) in Non Financial Assets (&57.95) (1,157.76)
Adjustments for increase/{(decrease) In operating liabilities:
Irkzease in Financial Liabilities 12,630.40 2,603.44
(Decreasc) in Non Financial Lisbilities 180.48 274.30
Net Cash (Used In) Operating Activities (4,47,907.55) (3,16,509.15)
Direct Taxes paid 1957.37 143062,
Net Cash (Used In) Operating Activities (A) 4.49,864.92) (3,16,939.77)
B Cash Flow From Investing Activities
(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment (2,011.96) (1,742.08)
{Purchase) in Intangibles Assets (2,093.96) (756.28)
Sale of property, plant and squipment and intangible assets 42.98 1.40
Purchase of investments (10,59,939.80) {7,91,814.22)
Sale of Investment 10,71,830.17 7.82,439.60
Proceeds. from fixed deposits with banks £0,173.41 55,987.83
Investment in fixed deposits with banks (58,976.36) (60,034.43)
Interest income on CP 531.05 301.40
Interest income received from fixed deposits with banks 547.48 183.84
Net Cash Genernted from / {Used in) Investing Activities (B) 10.303.01 021452941
{ Cash Flow From Finaecing Activities
Share issue expenses (5.25) (25.78)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securitics premitn} 94,966.95 68,552.10
Tmvesstment in subsidiary by NCI - 3,605.00
Proceeds from Non Current Borrowings 2,37,500.00 5,78.320.79
Repayment of Non Current Bormowings. {80,737.67) {2,41,678.02)
Proceeds from Current Bormrowings (net) 2,01,561.82
Interest on bormowings Paid (50,489.01) (18,888.14)
Repayment of lease obligations (1.027.09) (740.19)
Net Cash G From Fi ing Activiti () .04.169.75 3.89.145.76
Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equlvalents (A+B+C) (35,392.17) 50,751.05
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 73,721_58 22,96853
Cash acquired on acquisition of subsidiary .
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 3833941 73.721.58
Note:
Cash and Cash Equivalents at year end comprises:
Balances with Banks
Current Accounts 31,321.98 16,561.86
Cetificate of Deposits having matarity less than 3 months 2,499.44 46,966.10
Deposits having maturity loss than 3 months 4,504.73 30,193,562
Cheques, Drafts on Hand 0.50
Cashon Hand 276 —_
Y T BRI

The Cash Flows Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set ont in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7} on "Statement of Cash Flows™ and
presents cash flows by operating, investing and financing aciivities.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the lidated financial
As per gur report of even date attached
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP For gnd on behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166
.
DX Ay
Roshni Marfatia XY \ ?.‘?5 - Manish Shah Pirojsha Adi Godrej |I |. ! I; '|'|.
[\ Managing Director & Non executive f=1 —
Partner ,:E\Il- }A\j@ e CEQ Chairperson Ill_'- oM I:,;;-'
Membership Number: 106548 A\\_ (4:' DIN: 06422627 DIN; (0432983 N AN Y,
Date: April 30, 2024 1 b S ey
Place: Mumbzi ?P)I * N *__ —
Kumal K:
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Corporate Information

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED ("the Company") along with it's subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Group™), is engaged in the business of
housing finance, loans against property and to invest in and acquire, hold, sell, buy, subscribe or otherwise deal in shares, stocks etc by any

company.
Basis of preparation and summary of material accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statement of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 comprises of the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss, statement of cash flow, statement of
changes in equity and notes to consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 are

approved by the Board of Directors on April 30, 2024.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall be able to continue its
business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on going concern assumption. In making this
assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. All assets and liabilities have
been classified as current or non current as per the group’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of Schedule 111 to the
Act. Based on the nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention as modified by the application of
fair value measurements required or allowed by the relevant standards under Ind-AS.

Historical cost is generally the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilites measured at fair value through profit and loss statement (FVTPL).

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and disclosures as of
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
these estimates. Accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and could change from period to period.
Appropriate changes in estimates are recognised in the periods in which the group becomes aware of the changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods. The
estimates and judgements that have significant impact on the carrying amount of assets and liabilities at each balance sheet date listed here in
below under critical accounting estimates and judgements.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

2.04 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates, which, by definition in some cases vary with the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement and make certain assumptions in applying the group’s accounting policies and

preparation of consolidated financial statements.

The use of such estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities including the
accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in the future periods.

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of future
events that may have a financial impact on the group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:

A. Measurement of impairment of loans and advances

Judgement is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of firture cash flows when determining an impairment loss for
loans and advances in new businesses. In estimating these cash flows, the group makes judgements about the borrower’s financial situation
compare the borrower’s profile with customers having similar profile to estimate probability of default and the net realisable value of collateral, if
any. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors including forward looking information, and actual results may differ,
resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.

B. Useful lives of property, plant and equip and intangible assets
The group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period or even
earlier in case, circumstances change such that the amount recorded value of an asset may not be recoverable.

C. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit
risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details about determination of fair value please

see Note - 40.

D. Busi model

Classification and measurement of financial asset depends upon the results of the solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business
model test. The group determines the business model at a level that reflects how group of financial asset are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the asset is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of
the assets are compensated. The group monitors financial assets measured at amortised or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the

business for which the asset was held.

E. Measurement of Impairment of goodwill (Refer note 2.09)

F. Effective interest rate

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance) or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments
and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument.
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Functional Currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Group’s functional currency. All financial information presented

in Indian rupees have been rounded to the nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities that are controlled by the Company. Control exists when the group is exposed or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, potential voting rights
are considered only if the rights are substantive. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in these consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of previous
year. The financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the values of like
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and the unrealised profits/ losses,
unless cost/ revenue cannot be recovered.

The excess of cost to the company of its investment in subsidiaries, on the acquisition dates over and above the company’s share of equity in the
subsidiaries, is recognised as ‘Goodwill on Consolidation’ being an asset in the consolidated financial statements. The said Goodwill is not
amortised, however, it is tested for impairment at each balance sheet date and the impairment loss, if any, is provided for. Where the share of
equity in subsidiaries as on the date of investment is in excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognised as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown
under the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’ in the consolidated financial statements,

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately
within equity.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of:

(a) The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date on which investment in a subsidiary is made; and
(b) The non-controlling interests share of movements in equity since the date parent subsidiary relationship came into existence.

The profit and other comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests of subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement of profit
and loss and statement of changes in equity.

Upon loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non- controlling interests and the other components of
equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or de-ficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit & Loss. If
the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost and the
differential is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee depending on the level of

influence retained.
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Business Combinations

Business combinations, other than common control business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date
of the acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised at fair values on their acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Group recognises any non
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. Consideration transferred does not include amounts related to settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, other than those incurred in relation to the issue of debt or equity securities. Any contingent
consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Business combinations arising from transfer of interests in entities that are under common control are accounted for based on pooling of interest
method where the assets and liabilities of the acquiree are recorded at their existing carrying values. The identity of reserves of the acquiree is
preserved and the difference between consideration and the face value of the share capital of the acquiree is transferred to capital reserve, which is
shown separately from other capital reserves.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible assets) & Depreciation

Recognition and measurement
Property, Plant and Equipment (“PPE”) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost

comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the part will

flow to the group and its cost can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing PPE, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts arc charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost, net of their residual value over the estimated useful life of the

respective asset. The Company has estimated the useful lives to depreciate its PPE which is in accordance with those prescribed under Schedule 11
of the The Companies Act ,2013, except vehicles, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on the nature of the asset, the
estimated usage of the asset. The following are the estimates of the useful lives to depreciate its PPE: The following are the estimates of the useful

lives to depreciate its PPE:

Particulars Estimated useful life by the Group
Computer Hardware 3-5 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Vehicles 5 Years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight line basis over the period of lease of the asset.
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2.08 Intangible assets

2.10

Recognition and measurement

The group’s intangible assets primarily consist of computer softwares, brand & trademark. Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that
the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible
assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the group are
recognised as intangible assets.

Development costs include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is available for use.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets under development”

De-recognition
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising
from derecognition of an intangible asset, d as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

sAmortisation of intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. Intangible assets are amortised as per management's
estimate over a period of 3 to 10 years or licence period whichever is earlier. Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial
year end. Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units - CGU). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Goodwill on business combinations is disclosed separately on the balance sheet and is not amortised but tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. For the impairment test, goodwill is allocated to the CGU or
groups of CGUs which benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price
and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor.
Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill shall not be reversed in a subsequent period.

Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances with bank, deposits with bank (with original maturity of three months or less). For the
purposes of pr ion in the it of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and current account balances with banks

that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The group determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and

characteristics.

Financial assets
i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit and loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset

The financial assets include investments in mutual funds, trade and other receivables, loans and advances and cash and bank balances, However,
trade and other recejvables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

ii) Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:

» At amortised cost, and
« At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and
» At fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Financial assets at amortised cost include loans receivable, and other financial assets that are held with the objective of collecting contractual cash

flows. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate (EIR). The effective interest rate (EIR) amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to the Statement of profit and loss and recognised in other gains/(losses) (net). Interest income from these financial assets
is included in other income using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Fair value through Profit and Loss (FYTPL)
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’).

iii) Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period in which the group changes its business model for

managing financial assets.
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iv) Impairment
The provision for credit risks, which is recognized in accordance with the expected credit loss method specified by Ind AS 109 and in accordance
with uniform standards applied, encompasses all financial assets measured at amortised cost. The calculation of the provision for credit risks

generally takes into account the exposure at default, the probability of default and the loss given default.
Financial assets are subject to credit risks, which are taken into account by recognising the amount of the expected loss; such allowances are

recognised for both financial assets with objective evidence of impainment and non-impaired financial assets.

The general approach is used for financial assets measured at amortised cost on initial recognition. Financial assets are broken down into three
stages in the general approach.

Stage 1 consists of financial assets that are being recognised for the first time or that have not demonstrated any significant increase in probability
of default since initial recognition. In this stage, the model requires the calculation of an expected credit loss for the next twelve months.

Stage 2 consists of financial assets for which there is a significant increase in credit risk. The group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

Stage 3 Financial assets demonstrating objective indications of impairment are allocated to satge 3. The group assumes that the financial asset is
credit impaired if it is more than or 90 days past due.

In stage 2 and 3, an expected credit loss is calculated for the entire remaining maturity of the asset.

The group considers a financial asset to be in default when :
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the group in full or in part, without recourse by the group to actions such as realising

security (if any is held): or
- the financial asset is more than or 90 days past due.

Both historical information, such as average historical default probabilities for each portfolio, and forward-looking information is used to determine
the measurement parameters for calculating the provision for credit risks.

Impairment arises in a number of situations, such as delayed payment over a certain period, the initiation of enforcement measures, the threat of
insolvency or over indebtedness, application for or the initiation of insolvency proceedings, or the failure of restructuring measures.

Reviews are regularly carried out to ensure that the allowances are appropriate. Uncollectible loans or receivables that are already subject to a
workout process and for which all collateral has been recovered and all further options for recovering the loan or receivable have been exhausted
are written off directly. Any valuation allowances previously recognised are utilised. Income subsequently collected in connection with loans or
receivables already written off is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans are reported in the balance sheet at the net off Expected Credit Loss (ECL) provision,

Measurement of ECL
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

The Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time
over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a balance sheet date.

The Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD,

When estimating the ECL, the group adds a management override to account for stressed scenarios which are then reviewed on a periodic basis.
This takes into account the expected inherent risk for different segments in the portfolio and the macro economic environment. The assumptions
are periodically validated and modified as appropriate.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses or gains that are accounted for as an
adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying value.
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v) Write - offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when the group has no reasonable expectations of recovery. This is generally the
case when the group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the
allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment of financial instruments in
the statement of profit and loss. However, financial assets that are written off may be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the group's

procedures for recovery of amounts due.

2.11.B Financial liabilities
i) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at amortised cost, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, term loans and borrowings, lease liabilities etc.

ii) Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate (EIR)
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate (EIR). The effective interest rate (EIR) amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.11.C De-recognition, Medification and Transfer

Financial Asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primary derecognised when ;

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under as 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or (b) the group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required to repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the
asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

If the terms of a financial assets are modified, the group evaluates whether the cash flow of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash
flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case,
the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the
renegotiated or modified contractual cashflows that are discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate and recognises the amount
arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the the statement of profit and loss. Any costs or fees incurred
adjust the carrying amount of modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. If such a
modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses, in
other cases, it is presented as interest income.
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Financial Liability
The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different. In
this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance sheet, if there is currently enforceable legal right to

offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement
The group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments. The management regularly

reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments,

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques are as follows :

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as price) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire

measurement.

The group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Share capital
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs

directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that the outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where the
transfer of economic benefits is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

Capital commitments includes the amount of purchase order issued to parties for completion of assets, provisions, contingent liability and
commitments are reviewd at balance sheet date.
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2.14 Revenue and Expense Recognition
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A. Interest income
Interest income is presented in the statement of profit and loss includes interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost calculated on an

effective interest basis. Fee income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included in the effective
interest rate computation. The amortization of income and expenses for financial assets under EIR approach is done on a systematic basis that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial assets through the expected life of the assets.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets. (i.e. at the amortised
cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is
calculated applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial asset (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowances for

ECLs).

B. Commission and fee income
Commissions earned by the group which are not directly attributable to disbursal of loans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and

when incurred.

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The group recognises the fee and commission income in
accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the group will collect the consideration.

C. Profit or loss earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis, determined based on the weighted average cost of the
investments sold.

D. Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when:

= the right to receive dividend is established which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend,
» it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and

« amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

E. Interest expenses
Interest expense is presented in the statement of profit and loss includes interest on liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated on an effective

interest basis. Fee and borrowing costs that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial liability are included in the effective interest rate
computation. The amortization of expenses for financial liabilities under EIR approach is done on a systematic basis that exactly discounts
estimated future cash flows of the financial liabilities through the expected life of the financial liabilities. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

F. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds including the ancillary cost are amortised and accounted as interest expense

using the EIR method.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Emplovee Benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted

amount in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which the related service is rendered.

ii) Defined Contribution Plan
The group's contribution paid/payable during the year towards Provident and other funds is charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in

which employee renders the related service.

iii) Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each financial year end.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the actuary considers the interest rates of
government bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates,

The group has an obligation towards gratuity, a non funded defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. Vesting for gratuity occurs upon

completion of five years of service.
Details of the unfunded defined benefit plans for its employees are given in note 36 which is as certified by the actuary using projected unit credit

method.
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iv) Compensated Absences
Eligible employees of the group are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method for the unused entitlement that

has accumnulated as at the balance sheet date.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the

number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares which may involve issue
of equity shares. The calculation of diluted earnings per share does not assume conversion, exercise, or other issue of potential ordinary shares that

would have an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share.

Income Taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to

items directly recognized in equity or in OCL

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.
Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to OCI and equity are recognized in OCI and in equity respectively.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

The group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where
it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the Liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and

taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when
the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.18 Leases

2.20

The group’s lease assets primarily consist of leases for office premises. The group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(iti) the group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee. Short term leases (lease term of twelve months or less) and low value leases are recognized as an operating

expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the lower of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the group changes its assessment if whether it
will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash

flows.

Share Based Payments

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards/options granted to employee is recognised as an employee benefit expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The fair value of the
options at the grant date is calculated on the basis of Black Scholes Model. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number
of awards/options for which the related service are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the

number of awards/options that meet the related service at vesting period.

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM).
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4: Loans from financing activity
Secured, considered good
Housing loan
Non-housing loan

Unsecured, considered good
Non-housing loan

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Note 5: Other financial assets
Security Deposits
Excessive Interest Spread (EIS) Receivable

Note 6: Other non current assets
Prepaid expenses
Balances with Statutory authorities

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
398,558.66 273,773.44
363,476.09 188,703.33
100,438.26 8,151.31

(4,413.74) (2,124.95)
858,059.27 468,503.13
391.39 365.10
2,514.89 -
2,906.28 365.10
212.93 32.50
75.66 88.70
288.59 121.20




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Note 7: Current financial assets - Investments
At fair value through profit and loss
(a) Quoted/ Unquoted
Mutual Fund 52.59 19,524.49
Treasury Bills 9,313.10 -
9,365.69 19,524.49
Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments 9,365.69 19,524.49
Market Value of Quoted Investments 9,365.69 19,524.49
Note 8: Cash and Cash Equivalents
(i) Balances with Banks
-Current Accounts 31,321.98 16,561.86
-Certificate of Deposits 2,499.44 46,966.10
-Deposits having maturity less than 3 months 4,504.73 10,193.62
(ii) Cheques, Drafts on Hand 0.50 -
(iii) Cash on Hand 2.76 -
38,329.41 73,721.58

Note: Short term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Note 9: Other Bank Balances
(i) Balance with Banks

- In Deposits Account (Refer note below) 2,649.56 4,046.60
2,649.56 4,046 60

Note: Balance with Banks in deposit accounts comprises deposits than have an original maturity exceeding 3 months at balance sheet date.

Note 10: Loans from financing activity
Secured, considered good

Housing loan 10,005.10 6,955.83
Non-housing loan 122,993.06 37,466.82
Unsecured, considered good
Non-housing loan 35,044.99 630.64
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (760.58) (156.07)
167,282.57 44,897.22
Note 11: Other Financial Assets
Other Receivables 2,140.42 1,244.33
Security Deposits 258.72 -
Derivative financial Instrument - 25.41
2,399.14 1,269.74
Note 12: Other Current Assets
Advance to Suppliers 249.95
Prepaid Expenses 788.37
Advance to Employees 7.20
Balances with Statutory authorities 354.65

1,400.17




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
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(Amount Rs. in Lakh)
Note 13: Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Amount Amount
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 50.00 50.00
50.00 50.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up 33.30 24.55
33.30 24.55
Notes:
a) Reconciliation of Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year -
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Rs. No. of Shares Rs.
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 245,496 24.55 148,124 14.81
Issued during the year 87,482 8.75 97,372 9.74
Outstanding at the end of the year 332,978 3330 245,496 24.55

b) Terms/ Rights attached to Shares -
i) Equity Shares
The Company has one class of equity shares. Each equity share entitles the holder to one vote. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

¢) Details of Shares held by Holding Entity, Ultimate holding Entity, their subsidiaries and associates -

Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
(i) Equity shares held by holding entity:
Godrej Industries Limited 297,939 89.48% 214,130 87.23%

d) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company -

Name of the Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
Godrej Industries Limited 297,939 89.48% 214,130 87.23%

€) There are no equity shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.
f) i) The Company has not allotted any shares as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash; or
ii) Allotted as fully paid up bonus shares: or
iii) Bought back any of its equity shares.
g) There are no calls unpaid on any equity shares.

h) There are no forfeited shares.

i) No shareholding of promoter as on 31st March, 2024 or as on 31st March, 2023
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As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Note 14; Other Equity

Securities Premium Reserve 254,134.63 159,186.46
Retained Eamings (11,639.80) (14,977.91)
Employee Stock Grants Outstanding 121.65 24.09
Special Reserve 2,765.27 1,162.80
Treasury Shares (0.28) (0.28)
Capital Reserve on account of Amalgamation 84.15 84.15

245,465.62 145,479.31

Note 14.1:Nature and Purpose of Reserves
Securities Premium Reserve
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. This Reserve can be used only for the

purposes specified in the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings

Retained Earnings are losses incurred of the group incurred till date.

On March 31, 2023, the GCL acquired the balance 5% of voting interests in its following subsidiary GHFL & GFL from the non-controlling interest.
Since the group already had control over these subsidiaries through its ownership of 95% shares, the acquistion of remianing 5% will not result in
changes in goodwill. As per Ind AS 110, When the proportion of the equity held by non-controlling interests changes, an entity shall adjust the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. The entity shall recognise
directly in equity any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received, and attribute it to the owners of the parent. Accordingly, the differential is adjusted in retained earnings in accordance with Ind AS 110.

Employee Stock Grants Outstanding
The fair value of the equity-settled share based payment transactions with employees is recognised in Profit and Loss with the corresponding credit to

employee stock grants outstanding account

Special Reserve
Reserve created under section 451C of RBI Act, 1934 & 29C of NHB Act, 1987.

Capital Reserve
During amalgamation, the excess of net assets taken, over the cost of consideration paid is treated as reserve. The utilisation will be as per the

requirements of Companies Act, 2013
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(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Note 15: Non-current Financia) Liabilities - Borrowings
Secured Borrowings
Term Loan from Banks (Refer Note below) 460,050.14 369,537.29
Non-convertible debentures 59,542.83 39,919.11
519,592.97 409,456.40
Security :

Loans taken from a banks are secured by first ranking pari passu charge with a minimum asset cover on standard receivables of the
borrower, both present and future, however dard receivable excludes receivables which are / or will be exclusively charged to National
Housing Bank (NHB). There is also first ranking pari passu charge on cash and cash equivalents of the borrower, both present and future,
to the extent required to make up any shortfall in the stipulated security cover over the standard receivables.

The quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Terms of Repayment : Refer note 15¢ for repayment terms of borrowings.

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Note 16: Non-current Financial Liabilities - Lease
Lease Liabilities 2,537.96 1,600.67
2,537.96 1,600.67
Note 17: Non-current Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 22329 134.00
Compensated leave absences 57.67 34.84
280.96 168.84
Note 18: Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Secured
Secured Term Loan from Banks 80,267.34 9,279.07
Loan Repayable on Demand from Banks 20,182.02 3,266.22
Current Maturities of Long Term Loan from Banks 84,539.69 38,340.17
Non-convertible debentures 11,905.75 1,114.50
Unsecured
Commercial Papers 135,077.46 29,810.96
331,972.26 81,810.92
Security :

Term loan {aken from a bank is secured by first ranking pari passu charge with a minimum asset cover on standard receivables of the
borrower, both present and future, however standard receivable excludes receivables which are / or will be exclusively charged to National
Housing Bank (NHB). There is also first ranking pari passu charge on cash and cash equivalents of the borrower, both present and future,
to the extent required to make up any shortfall in the stipulated security cover over the standard receivables.

The quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

Terms of Repayment : Refer note 15c for repayment terms of borrowings.




As at March 31, As at March 31,

2024 2023
Note 19: Current Financial Liabilities - Lease
Lease Liabilities 812.37 663.62
81237 663.62
Note 20: Current Financial Liabilities - Others
Bank Book credit balance 16,924.65 7,961.06
Payable to Employees 2,251.51 1,550.52
EIS Payable 1,181.30 435.97
Liability for Expenses 321.30 23.75
Capital vendor for Intangible - 119.24
20,678.76 10,090.54
—
Note 21: Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables
(i) Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small
enterprises 39.33 45.95
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small
enterprises and micro enterprises 5,185.97 2,812.43
5,225.30 2,858.38

Micro and Small Enterprises Disclosure
During the year micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED
Act) have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Group. The disclosures pursuant to MSMED Act based on the
books of account are as under:

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at

the end of the accounting year/period;

(b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at

the end of the accounting year/period;

(c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act,

2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year/period

3933 4595

(d) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay
in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified
under the MSMED Act, 2006;

(e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of accounting year/period

(f) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

Disclosure of outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise under Trade Payables is based on the information available with the
Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. There is
no undisputed amount overdue during the year ended and as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 to Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises on account of principal or interest.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in lakhs)
Trade payables due for payment
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Not Due Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 6.00 33.33 - - - 39.33
(ii) Others - 231.90 415 0.56 - 236.61
(iit) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - > -
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Not Due Less than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total
(i) MSME . 4595 - - - 45.95
(ii) Others 1323 4.59 6.69 - - 24,51
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
|(iv) Disputed dues - Others - . - - . -
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Trade Payables as per ageing schedule above 275.94 70.46
Add: Trade Payables includes Unbilled dues 4.949.36 2.787.92
Total Trade Pavables as per Note 21 5,225.30 2,858.38
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Note 22: Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable 499.09 408.49
499.09 408.49
G
Note 23: Current Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 31.15 0.53
Provision for Compensated Absenses 24.64 15.36
55.79 15.89




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Note 15¢: Repayment terms of borrowings As at March 31, 2024

Due within 1 year Due 1 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Original maturity of loan (No. of days) No. of No. of No. of

Installments Amount Installments Amount Installments Amount dineunt
Monthly
Upto 365 Days 11 21,160 - - - 21,160
366 to 1095 Days - - - B - - -
More than 1095 Days - - = - = = =
Quarterly
Upto 363 Days 113 86,164.69 - - - - 86,164.69
366 to 1095 Days . - 240 | 289,867.02 31 48,532.11 | 338,399.13
More than 1095 Days - - - - 163 | 171,656.64 | 171,656.64
On maturity (bullet)
Upto 365 Days 21 85,873.36 - - - - 85,873.36
366 to 1095 Days - - 8 10,037.37 - - 10,037.37
More than 1095 Days - - z - = - =
Interest accrued and impact of EIR - 1,155.72 - - - 2,040.96 3,196.68
TOTAL 145.00 | 194,353.77 248.00 | 299,904.39 194,00 | 222,229.71 | 716,487.87
Interest rates range from 6.48% p.a. to 9.90% p.a.
Repayment terms of Commercial paper As at March 31, 2024
Original maturity of loan (No. of days) Due within 1 year Due 1 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Monthly
Upto 365 Days 133,986.53 - - 133,986.53
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 1.090.93 - - 1,090.93
TOTAL 135,077.46 - - 135,077.46

Interest rates range from 7.20% p.a. to 8.70% p.a.

Face value per commercial paper is Rs. 139000 lakhs
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Repayment terms of Borrowings As at March 31, 2023
Due within 1 year Due 1 to 3 years More than 3 years Total
Original maturity of loan (No. of days) No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount Amount
Install t Installments Installments

Monthly
Upto 365 Days . . e % - -
366 to 1095 Days - - - - . = -
More than 1095 Days 12 667 - - - - 667
Quarterly
Upto 365 Days - = - - B = =
366 to 1095 Days 22 7,792 4 2,292 - - 10,083
More than 1095 Days 64 29,204 165 | 123,420.73 187 224,357 376,982
On maturity (bullet)
Upto 365 Days 4 12,266 - - - - 12,266
366 to 1095 Days - - - - - - -
More than 1095 Days - - 2 20,000 1 20,000 40,000
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 711.02 (430.89) 545
TOTAL 102.00 50,639.66 171.00 | 145,281.51 188.00 | 244,356.89 | 440,542.85
Interest rates range from 5.60% p.a. to 9.32% p.a.
Repayment terms of Commercial paper As at March 31, 2023
Original maturity of loan (No. of days) Due within 1 year Due 1 to 3 vears More than 3 years Total
Monthly
Upto 365 Days 28,728.39 - - 28,728.39
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 1,082.57 - - 1,082.57
TOTAL 29.810.96 - - 29,810.96

Interest rates range from 4.0% p.a. to 8.15% p.a.
Face value per commercial paper is Rs, 30800 lakhe
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

For The Year Ended For The Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note 24: Revenue from Operations
Fees and Commission income 5,076.63 487.57
Interest income on loans from financing activity 74,924.66 27,927.55
80,001.29 28,415.12
Note 25: Other Income
Interest Income on deposits with banks 547.49 183.84
Interest Income on Security Deposits 23.44 15.98
Interest Income on Treasury Bills 175.64 -
Net gain on sale or fair valuation of investments 1,862.83 1,362.63
Miscellaneous Income 18.09 1.68
Gain on lease modification 42.30 -
Interest Income on Investments measured at Amortised Cost 531.05 301.40
Interest on L.T. Refund 38.64 12.37
Profit on sale of assets 4,53 0.70
Service Charges 3,324.78 3,679.69
6,568.79 5,558.29

Note 25a: Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost

Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost 2,348.76 717.40
2,348.76 717.40

Note 26: Employee Beneflts Expenses

Salaries and Wages 15,579.69 9,268.83
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 512.77 304.47
Expenses on Employee Stock Option Scheme 108.51 24.04
Staff Welfare Expenses 809.49 466.85
17,010.46 10,064.19

Salaries, bonus and allowances net of salary cost capitalised to Intangible Assets Under Development during the
current year is Nil. (Previous Year: Rs. 108.31 lakhs )

Note 27: Finance Costs

Interest on Borrowings 50,489.01 18,870.01
Interest on Lease Liabilities 220.17 148.90
Other Borrowing Costs 290.01 109.30

50,999.19 19,128.21

Note 28: Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 658.45 289.34
Amortisation on Intangible Assets 1,289.16 944.59
Depreciation on Rights to Use 862.78 663.38

2,810.39 1,897.31




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note 29: Other Expenses
Electricity Expenses 119.66 62.21
Rent 178.84 115.93
Repair and Maintenance- Others 174.81 140.87
Rates and Taxes 33.38 19.72
Legal and Professional Fees 1,832.18 748.54
Recruitment Expenses 156.41 313.79
Membership and Subscription Fees 62.98 137.18
Housekeeping Expenses 317.85 221.34
Office Expenses 140.43 74.08
Computer Expenses 1,597.79 988.26
Printing and Stationery 67.16 141.22
Postage & courier 19.62 18.98
Communication Expenses 84.42 85.05
Travelling and Conveyance 732.44 434.77
Commission and Brokerage 51.92 32.18
Allowance for expected credit loss (net) 2,999.02 1,526.82
Loan sourcing cost 3,091.38 997.74
Advertisement and Sales Promotion expenses 1,280.71 562.27
Payments to Auditors* 58.16 48.67
Director's Commission 5.45 -
Loss on sale of fixed assets 14.35 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 77.12 33.13
13,096.08 6,702.75
Note 29(a): Auditors' fees and expenses
Payments to auditor
a) Audit fees 45.84 35.88
b) Limited review 4.91 4.91
c) Certification 3.87 1.42
d) Other services 3.54 1.01
e) Tax audit fee - 5.45
58.16 48.67
* Auditor's remuneration is part of other expenses
Note 30: Earnings Per Share
Net (Loss) for Computation of Basic and Diluted
Earnings per Share (A) 5,002.72 (3,115.76)
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the Year 245,496 148,124
Add: Shares issued during the Year 87,482 97,372
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the Year 332,978 245,496
Weighted Average Number of Shares (B) 286,435 216,056
Face Value of Share in Rs. 10 10

Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (A)/(B) 1,746.55 (1,442.10)




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Note 31: Contingent Liabilities and C
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
(1) Contingent Liabilities shall be classified as-
(a) claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt - Disputed Income tax
. 12.21 12.20
liability
(b) & luding fi ial guarantees; and = -
(c) other money for which the Group is contingently liable. - &
(ii) Commitments shall be classified as- - -
(a) esumated' amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 1228.59 924.55
and not provided for;
(b) uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid; and - =
(¢) other - Undisbursed in respect of the loan 351,651.41 258,906.91
The Holding Company has given a corporate guarantee for an amount of Rs. 25,000 lakh in favour of National Housing
Bank as a security of refinance asssitance on behalf of the Subsidiary Company. (Previous Year Rs. Nil)
Note*  There are no due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at March 31,

2024 and as at March, 2023.

Note 32: Information on Subisidiaries
The subsidiary Compani idered in the Consolidated Fi ial St are:
Place of Business/ Percentnge of Holding
Name of the Company Country of As at March 31, As at March 31,
Incorporation 2024 2023
Subsidiaries of Godrej Capital Limited
Godrej Housing Finance Limited India 100% 100%
Godrej Finance Limited India 100% 100%
Godrej Capital Employee Stock OptionTrust India 100% 100%

Note 33: Impariment of Goodwill

The Group has recognised goodwill of Rs. 29,449.91 lacs for the cash generating unit (CGU) of housing financial
services. The recoverable amount of the CGU of housing financial services is determined on the basis of its value-in-use
The has used five year period for calculating value in use.

There is no impairment of goodwill during the year ended March 31, 2024.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)
Note 34: Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”

AA recognised in of profit and loss
Particulars For The Year Ended  For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Current tax expense
Current period - 537.74
Changes in estimated related to prior years - 10.12
Total current tax expense (A) - 547.86
Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - (537.74)
Deferred tax expense (B) - (537.74)
Total tax expense for the year (A) + (B) - 10.12
B. Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars For The Year Ended  For The Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
(i) Remeasurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations (62.14) 3.08
(if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss - (7.07)
Total (a) (62.14) (3.99
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss e =
Total (b) - -
Total (a+b) (62.14) (3.99)
C. Reconciliation of effective tax rate For The Year Ended March 31, 2024 For The Year Ended March 31, 2023
Amount Yoage Amount Yoage
Loss before tax as per Statement of profit and loss 5,002.72 (3,101.65)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 1,259.08 25.17% (780.62) 25.17%
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses (1,197.51) -23.94% (214.88) 6.93%
Difference in tax rate on account of capital gains z 0.00% - 0.00%
Changes in estimated related to prior years - 10.12
Deferred not created on unaborbed business loss (61.57) -1.23% 995.50 -32.10%
Total tax expense - 0.00% 10.12 -0.33%
D. Deferred tax balances
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Assets (DTA)
Employee benefits 611.12 1,093.14
Provision against standard loans 1,069.53 525.67
Others 859.17 18.53
Leases 32.77 41.26
Business loss (restricted to) 1,196.83 463.29
Unabsorbed Depreciation 277.51 376,80
DTA restricted to 4,046.93 2,518.69
Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL) 4
Unrealised gain on mutual funds/ T-Bills (0.98) (3.59)
WDV of tangible and intangible assets (1,089.06) (640.40)
Unamortised Borrowing Cost under EIR Basis (158.81) (222.08)
Unamortised Loan Acquistion Cost under EIR Basis (2,254.26) (1,115.06)
Leases (13.15) (6.89)
Total DTL (3,516.26) (1,988.02)

Deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation, business losses, EIR impact on financial instruments at amortised cost, lease related adjustments, unrealised net gain/(loss) on fair
value changes, disallowances under w/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 and others are not created on conservative basis but it restricted to current period tax.

E. Tax balances

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current tax assets (net)
Advance Income Taxes (net) 2,151.06 355.03
Total 2,151.06 355.03
Current tax liabilities (Net) = 199.98

Total - 199.98




Note 34: Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes”

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

F. Movement In defTered tix balnnees is on 31st March 2024
Deferred tax Deferred tax Net balance | Recognised Acqulred Deferred tax !
Particulars asset March 31, | Itabilicy March March 31, In profit or en -{l‘e: ﬁ:;rs Relcognclsled through business M’::::;;B;CJN asset March 31, De:;:n::l?: l;;l;:llty
2023 31,2023 2023 loss riery " comblnatlon ’ 2024 ’
Property, plant and equipment - 4040 (640.40) (448.66) - = (1L0E9.06) k2 {1,084, 06)
Investments - 1.59 (3.59) 261 - - - {0,951 - (0.98)
Employee benefits 1,093.14 - 1.093.14 (482,02} - - - 61112 611,12 -
Bormrowings . 22208 (222.08)) 6327 - - = [158.81) = (158517
Loans - 111506 (1. 1E5.06) {1,139.30) - - - (2,254.26) 000 (2.254.26)|
Leases 41.26 6,49 .37 (14.75) - - 19.62 3T (1115
Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances 525.67 - 525.67 543.86 - . 1,069.53 1.069.53
Brought forward Losses 461.29 - 463.29 73154 - - 1.196.43 1.196.83 -
Unabsorbed Depreciation 376.80 - 76, R0 {94.29) - . B 27151 77.51 -
Other provisions 18.53 - 1853 40,64 - - - 359.17 59,17 -
Net tux assets/ lnhilities 2,518.69 1,988.02 530.67 - - - - 530.67 4,046.93 3,51 6‘2=Ql
oo
Movement in deffered tax balances as on 315t March 2023
Deferred tax Deferred tax Net balance | Recognised . Acquired Deferred tax A
Particulars assetMarch 31, | lablity March | March31, | inprofitor :l”: o " Rei“gg‘d through buslness M‘:::hb;'l’";;'zs asset March 31, D’ﬁ:‘; i‘:\';l’ ';‘;';;“"
2022 31,2022 2022 loss | CArTeryears) n combination : 2023 :

Property. plant and equipment . 3931.82 (193.82) (246.58) - - - (640.40) s (640.40)
[nvestments 1458 (2.48)] (L1 - - - (3.59) ] (3.59)
Employee benefits - - 11021 - (7.07) - 1.091.14 | 109114 -
Borrowings = 2 - (222.08) - - = (222.08)] z (222.08)|
Loans - - (1.115.06) - - - (1.115.06) = (L Es.06]
Leases - - - 34.37 - - - 14,37 41.26 {6.89)
Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances - - - 525.67 - = 525.67 525.67 -
Brought forward Losses 396,30 - 396.30 66.99 - - 463.29 463,29 -
Unabsorbed Depreciation - - - 76,80 - - - 376.80 376,80
Other provisions - - 1853 - - - 1£.53 18.53 -
Net tax nssets/ Habilities 196,30 39630 - 537.74 - (7.07) - 530.67 2,518.69 {1,988.02
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Note 35: Leases (Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

(i) Right of use Asset
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year 3,510.50 2,239.03
Additions 2,569.87 1,271.47
Disposals/ Other Adjustments (1,719.65) -
Balance at end of the year 4,360.72 3,510.50
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at beginning of the year 1,301.34 637.96
Depreciation 862.78 663.38
Disposals/ Other Adjustments (1,085.04) -
Balance at end of the year 1,079.08 1,301.34
Carrying Amounts 3,281.64 2,209.16
(ii) Movement in Lease liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Opening lease liabilities 2,264.29 1,584.12
Add: Addition for new leases 2,467.14 1,271.47
Less: Reduction for termination / closure (660.62) -
Add: Interest on lease liabilities 220.17 148.90
Less: Lease payments (940.65) (740.20)
Closing lease liabilities 3,350.33 2,264.29
(iiif) Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
For The Year For The Year
Particulars Ended March 31, | Ended March 31,
2024 2023
(a) Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 862.78 663.38
(b) Interest on lease liabilities 220.17 148.90
(c) Expense relating to short-term leases 178.84 115.92
Total 1,261.79 928.20
(iv) The total cash outflow for leases for the year:
For The Year For The Year
Particulars Ended March 31, | Ended March 31,
2024 2023
Total cash outflow on leases 940.65 740.20
4. Maturity analysis (undiscounted amounts)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Less than one year 1,948.19 791.74
One to five years 1,939.14 1,746.78
More than five years - -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 3,887.33 2,538.52
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position 3,887.33 2,538.52
Current 812.37 663.62
Non-Current 2,537.96 1,600.67
Weighted average effectvie interest rate % 6.5% to 8.5% 6.5% to 7%

The above amounts includes principal & interest




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Note 36: Employee benefits - Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'
Note (a)

Defined contribution plans
The Group makes Provident fund contributions which are defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits

The Group has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss towards contribution to defined contribution plans which are

included under contribution to provident and other funds:

For The Year For The Year
Ended March 31, Ended March 31,
2024 2023
Provident fund charge 512.77 304.47

Defined Benefit Plan

I The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a non funded defined benefit plan covering eligible employees. Vesting for gratuity occurs upon
completion of five years of service. Details of the unfunded post retirement benefit plans for its employees are given below which is as certified by

the actuary.

Gratuity Disclosure Statement as Per Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) as below.

a) Changes in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation

For The Year For The Year
Ended March 31, Ended March 31,
2024 2023
Present Value of Benefit Obligation on Acquisition and Business Combination 134.53 84.04
Current Service Cost 70.65 47.65
Past service cost - -
Interest Expense/(Income) 9.73 5.12

Liability transferred in 11.84 59.11

Liability transferred out (10.74) (58.31)

Settlement Cost (Credit)/Cost - -

Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer (23.73)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to experience 47.10 0.66

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to change in demographic assumptions (28.67) (5.55)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions 43.71 1.81

Experience (gains)/losses - -

Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the year 254.42 134.53

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of the year - -
Expected return on Plan Assets - -
Contributions - -
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial Gain (loss) on plan assets - -

Fair value of plan assets, end of the year - -

b) Amount recognized in the balance sheet consists of: As at March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 254.42 134.53
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability 254.42 134.53
¢) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows: For The Year For The Year
Ended March 31, Ended March 31,
2024 2023
Service Cost
Current service cost 70.65 47.65
Past service cost - -
Total Service cost (i) 70.65 47.65
Net interest cost
Interest expense on DBO 9.73 5.12
Interest expense / (income) on plan assets - -
Total Interest cost (ii) 9.73 5.12
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit and Loss (iif) - (i +1i) 80.38 52.77
Total remeasurement in other comprehensive income (OCI) (iv) 62.14 (3.08)
Total Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit and loss and OCI (v) = (iii + iv) 142.52 49.69




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

d) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below
With the objective of presenting the plan assets and plan liabilities of the defined benefits plans and post retirement medical benefits at their fair
value on the balance sheet, assumptions under Ind AS 19 are set by reference to market conditions at the valuation date.

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
Discount rate 7.14% t0 7.16%
Salary growth rate 8.00%
Employee attrition rate 25% to 36%
Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
Urban
Expected average remaining working lives of employees 2 to 3 years
¢) Impact on defined benefit obligation - Sensitivity Analysis As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Increase Decrease
i) Discount rate (1% movement) (8.85) 7.99
ii) Change in salary growth rate (1% movement) 9.36 (7.40)
iii) Change in emplovee attrition rate (1% movement) (4.39 3.76

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the benefit obligation as recognised in the

balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

f) Maturity
The defined benefit abligations shall mature after year end as follows:
Particulars As at March 31,
2024

i) 1stFollowing Year 3LI5
ii) 2nd Following Year 42.94
iii) 3rd Following Year 41.21
iv) 4th Following Year 40.07
v) 5th Following Year 39.87
vi) Sum of Years 6 to 10 105.06
vii) Sum of Years 11 and above 43.02

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is (previous year - 12 years).

g) Risk Exposure
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and Company is exposed to the Following Risks:
Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value of the liability
requiring higher provision.
Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an
increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.
Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage pay-out based on pay as you

go basis from own funds.
Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity

risk.

Note (c) Impact of Code on Social Security, 2020
The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on social security, 2020 which may impact the contributions by the Group towards Provident Fund
and Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying and financial impact are
yet to be determined. The Group will complete its evaluation and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the year in which, the
code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are notified.
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Note 37: Share based payments

The Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2021 (“"ESOP Scheme 20217} of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an Extraordinary General Meeting held
on January 5, 2021. The Scheme is administered by Company's Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the Eligible Employees, who are the permanent employees of the Company
or any Subsidiary of the Company, on the date of Grant of Options. The Compensation Committee of the Company would decide the entitlement of each employee based on hisher
performance, level, grade, seniority and such other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Committee, The Exercise Price will be as decided by the Compensation
Commitee, The Options granted would vest afler twenty one months but not later than fifty seven months from the date of Grant of Options or as may be decided by Compensation
committee. Exercise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of Vesting of Options or such other period as may be decided by the Compensation Committee, within which the Employee

should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the Company to him pursuant to the Option Vested in him in accordance with the ESOP Scheme 2021,

Description of the share based payment plans:

The exp: T ised for employee services d during the year / period is shown in the following table:

[Particulars For The Year Ended March 31, 2024 For The Year Ended March 31, 2023
Expenses arising from equity-seitled share-based pavment transactions 108.51 24.04
‘Total 108.51 24.04
Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise price (WAEP) of, and movement in, share options during the year / period:

Particulars For The Year Ended March 31, 2024 For The Year Ended March 31, 2023
Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,637 10 2,759 10
Granted during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the year 434 10 122 10
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,203 10 2,637 ILI

The weighted average fair values of the options Rs. 4.29. The stock price of the options is Rs. 10.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

Year ended For The Year Ended March 31, 2024 For The Year Ended March 31, 2023
Share price Rs 4,29 Rs4.29
Risk free interest rate 7.00% 7.00%
Fair Value of Option 0910 1.6 0.9to 1.6
Volatility 42,70% 42.70%
Time to Maturity S years S years
Exercise pri Rs. 10 Rs. 10

Expected Volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the comparable Company's share price over the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and

behavioural considerations.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the foliowing expiry date and exercise prices:

N . March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price Share Outions Share Options
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2029 10 257.00 315.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2029 10 216.00 239,00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2029 10 9.00 9.00
|May 10, 2021 February 5, 2030 10 44.00 61.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2030 10 26.00 43.00
January 29, 2021 October 28, 2030 10 269.00 331.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2030 10 219.00 232.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2030 10 9.00 9.00
May 10, 2021 ti‘nmnry 5,2031 10 45,00 £3.00
[June 22, 2021 March 20, 2031 10 28.00 45.00
January 29, 2021 Qetober 28, 2031 10 254.00 312.00
February 3, 2021 November 2, 2031 10 202.00 215.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2031 10 8.00 8.00 |
May 10, 2021 Febmary 5, 2032 10 41,00 58.00
June 22, 202] March 20, 2032 10 24.00 42.00
January 3%, 2021 October 28, 2032 10 257.00 319.00
February 3, 2031 ‘November 2, 2032 10 216.00 229.00
Febraury 11, 2021 November 10, 2032 10 9.00 9-0‘;‘
May 10, 2021 February 5. 2033 10 44.00 61.00
June 22, 2021 March 30, 2033 10 26.00 43.00
Total 2,203.00 2,637.00




GODRE) CAPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Amount Rs, in Lakh)

B) ESOP Scheme 2022
The Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2022 (“ESOP Scheme 2022") of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an Anuual General Meeting held on

June 1, 2022. The Scheme is administered by Company's Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the Eligible Employees, who are the permanent employees of the Company or any
would decide the entitlement of each employee based on his/her

Subsidiary of the Company, on the date of Grant of Options, The Comp ion C i of the Comp
performance, level, grade, seniority and such other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Committee. The Exercise Price for each Option will be will be determined by the
Board.The Options granted would vest afier a minimum period of twenty four months which may be extended to thirty six months but not later than seventy two months from the date of
Grant of Options or as may be decided by Compensation committee, Exercise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of Vesting of Options or such other period as may be decided by the
Board, within which the Employee should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the Company to him pursuant to the Option Vested in him in accordance with the

ESOP Scheme 2022,

Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and welghted averape exercise price (WAEP) of, and movement in, share options during the year:
For the year For the year
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 934 10 - -
Granted during the year 1,135 10 934 10
Lapsed during the year 263 10 - =
[Oulﬂm‘l ding at the end of the year 1,806 10 934 10

The weighted average fair values of the options granted during the year was Rs. 1,08,556. The weighted average stock price of the options granted during the year ended March 31,
2024 is Rs.10.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Biack-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

Particulars For the vear
Share price Rs. 80,496.49 & Rs. 1,08.556.00
Fair Value of Option Rs. 12,836.81 to Rs. 45,534.12
Risk free interest rate 6.69% to 7.34%
Volatility 16.73% to 29.79%
Time to Maturity 7 years
Exercise price Rs. 80,496.49 & Rs. 1,08,556.00
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the followi iry date and exercise prices;
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price it
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-06-31 80,496.49
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-06-32 £0,496.49
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-06-33 80,496.49
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-06-34 80,496.49
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-04-32 80,496.49
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-04-33 80,496.49
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-04-34 80,496.4
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-04-35 80,4964
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-11-32 80,496.49
| Wednesdsy, November 9, 2022 30-11-33 80,496.49
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-11-34 £0,496.49
Wedriesday, November 9, 2022 30-11-35 £0.496.49
Friday, March 10, 2023 28-02-33 §0,496.49
[Friday, March 10, 2023 28-02-34 0,496.40
Friday, March 10, 2023 28-02-35 80,496.49
Friday, March 10, 2023 29-02-36 §0.496.49
Monday, July 3, 2023 31-03-33 108,556.00
Monday, July 3, 2023 31-03-34 108,556.00
Monday, July 3, 2023 31-03-35 08,556.00
Monday, July 3, 2023 31-03-36 08,556.00
Tuesday, September 5, 2023 31-07-33 08,556.00
Tuesday, 8 ber 5, 2023 31-07-34 08.556.00
Tuesday, September 5, 2023 31-07-35 08,356.00
Tuesday, September 5, 2023 31-07-36 108.556.00
Monday, January 8, 2024 31-12-33 108,556.00
Monday, January 8, 2024 31-12-34 108,556.00
Monday, January B, 2024 31-12-35 108,556.00
Manday, January , 2024 31-12-36 108.556.00
Saturday, March 23, 2024 28-02-34 108.556.00
Saturday, March 23, 2024 28-02-35 108.556.00
Saturday, March 23, 2024 29-02-36 108.556.00
Saturday, March 23, 2024 28-02-37 108,556.00
Total 1,806
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 39: Related Party Informatlon

n) Names of related partics and description of relatlonship

Name of related porty Nature of relationship

Godref Industries Limited Haolding Company (w.e.l. March 25, 2021)

Giodrej Properties Limited Companies under Common Ownership

Godrej Investment Advisors Limited Companies under Common Ownership

Godrej Consumer Products Limited Companies under Common Ownership

Godrej One Premises Management Private Limited Companies under Common Ownership

Godrej Highrises Properties Private Limited Companies under Common Ownership

Goidrey Boyce Manufacturing Company Comp under Common Or ip

Funal Karnani CFO (w.e.f 5th August, 2022)

Manish Shah vey Ma ial Personnel - Managing Dir and CED (w.e{ Tth March 2023}

b) Transactlons with related partles
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Key ial Personnel - | Ci jes under Common
Dlrector Ownership
FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23

Sr. No.|Nature of transaction Holding Company

‘Transactions with related party

| |lssue of Share capiial & Security Premium 94,966.96 68,500.10 . - - -
1 |Reimbursement of Cost 388.05 477.61 - - 305.77 63.16
3 |Reimbursement of Cost recoverad from - 4.95 - - 5.28 6.07
4 |Purchase of goods - - - - 365.96 0.25
5 |Purchasc of Brand logo - - - - - 245.63
& |Remuneation to KMP - - 972.06 984.30 - -
T |Security deposit received back 148.62 - - - - -
% |Security deposit paid - . » + 149.85 :
Balance Outstanding as on date
I |Qutstanding Balance - Payable 9.82 9.42 - - 18.48 5.21
1 |Security deposits - - - - 149.85 -
3 |Outstanding Balance - Receivable - 4.90 - - 2.72 3.24
4 __|Corporate Guarantee given - - - - 25,000.00 -

Helding Company Key Managerial Personnel - | Companles under Common

Sr.No|N -
r. No.[Nature of transaction FY 2023-2d | FY 2022.23 | FY 2023-24 | FY 2022.23 | FY 2023.24 | FY 2022-23

Trunsactions with related party

I |Iszut of Sharc capital & Sccurity Premium
Godrej Industries Limited 94,966.96 68,500.10 - ~ = -

2 |Reimbursement of Cost
Gusdref Industries Limited 388.05 477.61 - - - .
Godrej One Premises Management Private Limited - - - - 90.26 62.96
Godrej Properties Limited - - > = > 0.20
Anamudi Real Estates LLP - - - - 204.17

{inrreg Highrises Prperties Private T imited . . . . 114 -

3 of Cost r d from
Godrej Industries Limited - 4.95 - - - -
Godrej Properties Limited . . . . 528 6.07

4 |Purchase of goods
{Jedrej Consumer Products Limited - - - - 0.77
Godrej Boyce Manufacturing Company - - - - 365.19

0.25

5 |Purchase of Brand logo
Goilrej Properties Limited . * x - - 245.63
6 |Remuneration to KMP
Short term employee benefit . B 853.02 561.54 - -
Post employment benefit - - 37.20 25.05 . -
Sitting Fees - - 81.84 397.71 - -

7 |Security deposit received back
Godrej Industries Limited 148.62 . - . '

8 |Seccurkry deposit paid
Anamudi Real Estates LLP . - - - 149.85

Balance Outstanding as on date
1 |Outstanding Balance - Payable
Godrej Industries Limited 9.82 9.42 - - -
Godrej One Premises Management Private Limited - -
Godrej Consumer Products Limited - - - = -
Godrej Highrises Properties Private Limited . B - - 11.34

2 [Sceurity deposits
Godrej Industries Limited - H a 3 =
Anamudi Real Estates LLP a - i . 149.85 -

i |o Balance - Reccival
Godrej One Premises Management Private Limited - - - - - 230
Godrej Properties Limited - - - - 272 0.93
Godrej Industries Limited - 4.90 - - - -

4 |Corporate Guarantee given - - F - 25,000.00 -
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 40: Fair Value Measurement

The fair value is the amount at which financial instruments could be sold on fair terms as of the reporting date, Where market prices {.g. for marketable securities) were
available, we have used these prices without modification for measuring fair value. If no market prices were available, the fair values for loans/receivables and liabilities were
calculated by discounting using a maturity-matched discount rate appropriale to the risk.

Classification of financial assets and financlal Labilities:
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of Financial assets and Financial liabilities which are classified as Amortised Cost, Fair value through Profit

and Loss (FYTPL) and Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

As at March 31, 2024 (Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value
FYTPL FYTOC] Amortised cost Total Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Non Current
Loans from financing activity - - 858,059.27 858,059.27 - - - =
Chher Financial Assets - - 2,906.28 2,906.28 - - - -
Current
Investments 9.365.69 - - 9,365.69 9.365.69 - - 9.365.69
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 38,329.41 38,329.41 - - - -
Other Bank Balances - - 2,649.56 2,649.56 - - - =
Loans from financing activity - - 167,282.57 167,282.57 - - - -
Other Financial Assets - - 2.399.14 2.399.14 - - - -
9,365.69 - 1,071,626.23 1,080,991,92 9.365.69 - - 9.365.69
Financial liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings - - 519,592.97 519,592.97 - - - -
Lease Liabilities . - 2,537.96 2,537.96 - - 2,537,96 2,537.96
Current
Borrowings = - 331,972.26 331,972.26 - - - -
Lease Liabilities - - 812.37 812,37 - = 812.37 812,37
Other Financial Liabilities - - 20,678.76 20,678.76 - - - -
Trade Payables - - 5.225.30 5.225.30 - - - -
- - 880,819.62 880,819.62 - - 3.350.33 3.350.33
As at March 31, 2023 (Amount Bs. in Lakh)
Particulars Carrying Amount Falr Value
FVTPL FYTOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Financial assets
Non Current
Loans from financing activity - - 468,503.13 468,503.13 - - = -
Other Fingncial Assets - - 365.10 365.10 - - - -
Current
Investments 19.524.49 - - 19,524.49 19,524.49 - . 19,524.49
Cash and Cash Equivalents B - 73,721.58 73,721.58 - - - -
Other Bank Balances - - 4,046.60 4,046.60 - - - -
Loans from financing activity - - 44,397.22 44,897.22 - - - -
Other Financial Assets - - 1.269.74 1.269.74 25.41 - - 2541
1952449 ~ 592,803.37 612,327.86 19,549.90 - - 19,549.90
Financial liabflities
Non Current
Borrowings - - 409,456.40 409,456.40 - - - -
Lease Liabilities - - 1,600.67 1,600.67 - - 1,600.67 1,600.67
Current
Borrowings - - 81,810.92 81,810.92 - - - -
Lease Liabilities - - 663.62 663.62 - - 663.62 663.62
Other Financial Liabilities - - 10,090.54 10,090.54 - - - -
Trade Payables - - 2.858.38 2.858.38 - - - 2
- - 506.480.53 506,480.53 - - _ 2126429 2.264.29 |

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial liabilities, trade payables approximate their carrying value largely due to short term maturities
of these instruments.

Financial instruments with fxed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Group based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the
counterparty, Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such instruments is not materially
different from their carrying amounts.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 40: Fair Value Measurement (Continued)
Measurement of falr values

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of Financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which al! inputs which have a signi effect on the ded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a signicant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used, }
Type

Valuation Technique

The Group's borrowings are at floating rate of interest and the carrying value of loans approximates their fair value.

Borrowings
Other borrowings which are short-term in nature and hence carrying value approximates their fair value.

Lease Liability Lease liabilities are valued using Level 3 techniques. A change in one or more of the inputs to reasonably possible altemative
assumptions would not change the value significantly.

Loans and Advances Substantially all loans are at floating rate of interest, the carrying value of loans approximates their fair vatue

Investments in Mutual Funds The fair values of investments in mutual funds is based on the net asset value (' NAV’) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units
in the published as at Bal Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund

and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

There are no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3, since there are no financial instrutments at fair value under the category.
Note 41: Financial Risk Management

F I risk M: bjectives and polici

The Group's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely Credit risk, Liquidity risk, Currency risk, Interest risk, market risk, operational risk and
compliance risk. The group's Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk management framework.

The Board of Directors has an overall responsibility for the establist and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. Risk menagement is integral to the whole
business of the group. The group has a system of controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks.

The inually itors the Group’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved

Risk management framework
Risk Management forms an integral part of the group's operations. The group's Board of Directors with support of risk function has overall responsibility for the
and oversight of the risk management framework. The Board of Directors has constituted following committees and defined_their role for monitoring the risk management

policies of the group.

Board level committees

Risk Management Committee of the Board (RMC): The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in its oversight of various risks
1) Credit Risk

ii) Liquidity and Interest Rate Risk

iii} Operational Risk (Process, HR, Technology and Fraud)

iv) Strategic Risks (includi ing and external risks)

v) Compliance and Reputation Risk (compliance risk and reputation risk are covered through compliance risk management charter).

Borrowing and I C i Provide on nature of investments that shall be undertaken, and approve credit limits for various counterparties, where

exposures in aggregate exceed a certain level.

Asset Liability Management Committee of the Board (ALCO): ALCO shall review the Liquidity Risk and Interest Rate Risk on a regular basis and suggest necessary
actions based on its view and expectations on the liquidity and interest rate profile. The Group's risk policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, The risk policies and sy are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in the market conditions and the activities of the Group. The Group, through its training and dards and proced aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

d and reviews the ad y of the

The Risk Management Committee oversees how the management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and p
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee,

(MCC): Cc i bers include M: ing Director (MD), Chief Risk Officer (CRO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Chief Business Officer

Credit C
(CBO). C i approves policies on recc dation of concerned credit committee. It approves/ modifies/disapproves business proposal based on delegation of

authority (DOA) approved by the Board and recommends proposals.

Fraud Risk Management Committee (FRMC): An independent Fraud Risk M C ittee (FRMC) comprising of top management representatives has been
constituted who review the matters related to fraud risk and approve / recommend actions against frauds. FRMC consists of CFO, Head-Risk, Chief Human Resources Officer

(CHRO) and Head-Legal and Compliance




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 41: Financial Risk Management (Continued)
C Risk Management approach for handling carious types of risk
(a) Credit risk
The credit risk is governed by defined credit policies and Board approved DOA which undergo periodic review. The credit policies outline the type of products that can be

offered, customer categories, targeted customer profile, credit approval process, DOA and limils etc. Each b unit is required to impl Group’s credit policies and

procedures and maintain the quality of its credit portfolio.

Credit Risk assessment methodology

The Group has a structured credit approval process, which includes a well blished procedure of comprehensive credit appraisal. The credit appraisal process involves

cnncal assessment of quantitative and qualitative parameters subject to review and approval as per defined DOA. The credit assessment involves detailed analysis of industry,
fi ials, end use etc. An internal rating is also assigned to the borrower based on defined p For retail the credit is

based on a parameterised approach. Credit risk monitoring and portfolio review. The group measures, monitors and manages credit risk at an individual borrower level. The

credit risk for retail borrowers is being managed at portfolio level.

The credit assessment is carried out based on an intemal risk assessment framework which rates the customers accordingly to various parameters. Data analytics is extensively

used for effective risk monitoring,

Loans & Advances

Credit risk for loan & advances is managed by the group through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to

whlch the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Further, a major portion of exposure is secured by way of property and fixed deposits. Group also
an all for impat that rep its esti of expected losses in respect of loans & advances

Movement in Provision for Loss Allowance:

As at March | As at March

fartoatins 31, 2024 31,2023
Opening provision for loss allowance 2,281.02 754.37
2,893.30 1,526.65

Impairement loss recognised for period
Closing provision for loss allowance

5,174.32 2,281,02

(b) Liquidity risk
A risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its day to day financial obligations is known as liquidity risk. Management of liquidity risk is done as follows:

i) ALCO sets the strategy for managing liquidity risk with the busil objectives.
i) ALCO has delegated the responsibility of ing overall liquidity risk and interest rate risk to Treasury. ALCO has set various gap limits for tracking liquidity risk. The
CFO and head of treasury monitor the gap limits with actuals and present the same to the MD & CEQ,

iii) Treasury department the liquidi ition on a day-to-day basis and reviews daily reports covering the liquidity position of the Group, Treasury team ensures the
regulatory compliance to the liquidity risk related limits approved in the ALM policy by ALCO.

iv) The Group's approach to liquidity is to ensure sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to

the group's reputation.

The key elements of the Group's liquidity risk management strategy are as follows:

i) Maintaining a diversified funding through market and bank borrowings such as deb €s, ¢ 1 papers, subordinated debt, perpetual debt, Inter-corporate
deposits (ICD’s), overdraft and bank term loans. Unused bank lines constitute the main liquidity back up to meet the contingency funding plan. Additionally, based on Market
scenario, the group also maintains a portfolio of highly liquid mutual fund units.

ii) Under the ALM guidelines, the dynamic liquidity statement and structural liquidity statement are being prepared periodically to monitor the maturity gaps in the Assets and
Liabilities cash flows.
iii} The Group carries out stress testing of cash flows on periodic basis and shares the results with ALCO to gauge the adequacy of lquidity.

The below table analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and financial assets into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date,




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 41: Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Contractual Cash Flows
Total LR 6to12 months | 1to2years | 2to5 years [LZGATLIE
months years
Trade payables 5,225.30 522530 = - - -
Borrowings 851,565.23 101,644.52 229,828.13 133,366.66 343,685.96 43,039.96
Lease Liability 3,350.33 521.66 899.45 725.53 1,203.69 -
Other Financial Liabilities 20.678.76 20,652.67 - - - 26.09
Total 880.819.62 128,044.15 230,727.58 134,092.19 |  344,889.65 43,066.05
Particulars Contractuai Cash Flows
Total Lessithans 6to 12 months | 1to2years | 2to5years MioreiChani
months years
Cash and Bank balance 40,978.97 38,329.52 2,649.45 - - -
Loans 1,025,341.84 90,755,14 77,061.25 97,370.90 171,069.53 589,085.02
Other financial assets 5,305.42 114.45 2.284.86 187.78 960.99 1.757.34
Total 1,071,626.23 129,199.11 81,995.56 97.558.68 172,030.52 |  590,842.36
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Contractual Cash Flows
Total =0T 6to12months | 1to2years | 2to5years Morthan
months vears
Trade payables 2,858.38 2,858.38 - - = N
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 491,267.32 46,422.36 35,659.62 81,174.15 239,273.66 88,737.53
Lease Liability 2,264.29 324.16 339.45 725.75 874.93 -
Other Financial Liabilities 10,090.54 10.079.24 - - - 11.30
Total 506,480.53 59.684.14 35.899.07 81,899.90 240,148.59 88.748.83
Particulars Contractual Cash Flows
Total [l 6to 12 months | 1to2years | 2to5years Mogeliiianis
months years
Cash and cash equivalents 77,768,18 75,247.50 2,520.68 - - -
Loans 513,400.35 25,713.98 19,322.60 25,658,23 53,210.91 389,494.63
Other financial assets 1.634.84 585.46 - 140.01 225.09 68428
Total 592.803.37 101,546.94 21,843.28 25,798.24 53.436.00 | 390,178.91

(c) Market risk
Risk due to change in market prices — e.g. interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads, but not relating to changes in the obligor'sfissuer’s credit

standig and will attect the Lroup's income or the value of its hotdings of tinancial mstruments. 'Ihe objective of the group's market nsk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable risk tolerances levels to ensure the solvency while optimising the return on risk. ALCO sets up limits for each significant type of
risk/aggregated risk and various products in the portfolio, with market liquidity being a primary factor in determining the level of limits.

(d) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk can be

either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments because of
fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing in will fl b of fluctuations
in the interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The group has fixed rate interest bearing liabilities and financial assets where no interest rate risk is perceived

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts shown below, This

analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
Exposure to interest rate risk Group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings and loans & advances to customers. The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing
financial instruments and sensitivity analysis as reported to the management of the Group are as follows:

Rate sensitive Rate sensitive
100bps 100bps

Particulars As at March 31, @ 10.0hp B @100bps change As at March @t/:hang: @chnngf

2024 change increase decrease 31,2023 increase decrease
Fixed rate instruments
Investments 9.365.69 93.66 (93.66) 19.524.49 195.24 (195.24)
Bormrowings 206.526.03 2.065.26 (2.065.26) 73.363.56 733.64 (733.64)
Loans 141.385.51 1,413.86 (1.413.86) 57,784 577.84 (577.84)
[Floa ting rate instruments
Investments = - - 5 - =
Borrowings 645,039.20 6.450.39 (6.450.39)| 417.903.76 4.179.04 (4.179.049)
Loans 889.130.67 8.891.31 (8.891.31)] 457.896.48 4,578.96 {4.578.96)

e) Foreign currency risk
The group is currently not exposed to currency risk since its primary dealings are in INR.

f) Equity price risk
The group does not have any exposure to equities and hence it not exposed to any equity price risk.
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Note 41: Financial Risk Management (Continued)

g) Operational Risk
The risk of direct or indirect potential loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Group's processes, personnel, systems, or from external factors other than

credit, compliance, reputation, market and lquidity risks. Management of operational risk forms an integral part of the Group's enterprise wide risk management systems.
Clear strategies and oversight by the Board of Directors and senior a strong operational risk culture, effective internal control and reporting and
contingency planning are crucial elements of the Group's operational risk management framework.

g) Cyber Security Risk

Various measures are adopted to effectively protect the Group against phishing, social media threats and rogue mobsile. Group ensures seamless accessibility of critical systems
through virtual private network (VPN), thereby minimizing the risk of security/data breaches and cyber-attacks.

h) Regulatory and Compliance Risk
Regul i are handled by Finance team, Treasury and Busi teams in Itation with Compli team. Statutory compli are handled by Si ial
team, Administrative and people process related pli are handled by Administration & HR departments. As per latory requi required policies are adopted

modified and rolled from time to time. Compliance to the defined policies is strictly adhered to,

Note 42: Capital management

The primary objective of the group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximizes its value. The
Group manages its capital structure and adjusts it, in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year
ended 31 March 2024 and for period ended 31 March 2023.

The Group monitors capital using Adjusted net debt to equity ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt less cash and bank balances and Current
in and adjusted capital includes capital & other equity reserves (other than hedge reserve).

The Group’s net debt to adjusted equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:
(Amount Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non current borrowings 460,050.14 369,537.29
Current borrowings 331,972.26 81,810.92
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 38,329.41 73,721.58
Less: Other bank deposits 2,649.56 4,046.60
Less: Current Investments 9,365.69 19,524.49
Adjusted Net debt 741,677.74 354,055.54
Total equity 245,498.92 145,503.86
3.02 243

Net debt to adjusted equity ratio

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital during the year. The group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements




Note 43: Disclosure of Ratios

Note:
i)

i)

iii)

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Return on capital employed

=EBIT/(Total Assets- Current Liabilities)

Particulars Formulas For The Year Ended March For The Year Ended March 31,
31,2024 2023
Current ratio = Current Assets /Current liabilities 0.62 1.50
Debt Equity ratio = Total Debt / Shareholders’ Equity 3.47 3.38
Debt service coverage ratio = Annual Net Operating Income / Total Debt Service 0.07 0.04
Return on equity ratio = Net Income/ Shareholder’s Equity 0.02 (0.02)
Inventory Turnover ratio = Cost of goods sold/Average Inventory N/A N/A
Trade payables turnover ratio |= Net Credit Purchases / Average Accounts Payable N/A N/A
Net profit ratio = Net Profit/Net Sales 0.06 (0.09)
0.07 0.03

The variance in return on equity, return on capital employed & net profit ratio is mainly on account of increase in revenues of the subsidiaries namely GHFL & GFL

The variance in current ratio & debt equity ratio is on account of increase in operations of subsidiaries namely GHFL & GFL

The variance in debt service coverage is on account of increase in operations & resultant increase in EBITA of subsidiaries namely GHFL & GFL

Note 44: Disclosure under Rule 11(e)(ii)

(Amount Rs, in Lakh)

Amount of
. fund
N f Enti ionshi i A
ame of Entity Date advanced/ Relationship CIN Registered Address
invested
13Jun23 1y 1483999 PIROJS}-?AOI?:g:\l?I\IIE]::\’STERN
Godrej Housing Finance Limited ‘Wholly Owned Subsidiary U65100MH2018PLC315359 EXPRESS HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
(EAST) MUMBAI 400079
05-Tun-23 20,000.00
21-Sep-23 28,497.04 PIROJS ::ﬁ:gil({) I\11-3]:3'5:STERN
Godrej Finance Lirnited ‘Wholly Owned Subsidiary U67120MH1992PLC065457 EXPRESS HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
30-Sep-23 1,498.07 (EAST) MUMBAI 400079
29-Feb-24 29,971.23




te 45; Additignal ired under Schedule 11 to the C 3 ]

Amount Rs. in Lakhs
Asat March 31, 2024

Net Assets - total assets minus " Share in
total linbilities Sharelinprfitiorloss other comprehensive |\ ;oo rehensive Income (TCI)
Name of the entity fncome (OCI)
As % of As % of As % of
Consalidated Amount Consolldated Amount | consolldated| Amount |As% of TCI Amount
nel sissels prafit or loss ocCI

Parent
Godrej Capital Limited 103.24% 253,448.22 -1.78% (88.90) 0.00% - -1,80% (88.90)
Subsidiaries
Indlan
Godrej Housing Finance Limited 36.83% 90,423.39 160.16% 8,012.39 -7.2%% 4.53 162.27% 8016.93
Godrej Finance Limited 51.01% 125,239.26 -58.38%| (2,920.57) 107.30% -66.68 -60.46% (2987.25),
Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Trust 0.00% 0.32 0.00% {0.06) 0.00% - 0.00%, 0,00
Inter- El &C
Adjustments -91.08% (223,612.26) 0.00% 0.13) -0.01% 0.00 0.00% 0.19)

TOTAL | lO0,00%i 245,498.92 100.00% 002.72 IO'D‘OO'.an (62.14) ]llll.ﬂl]%i 4940.58

Amount Rs, in Lakhs

As ot March 31, 2023

Share in

NEHASSEESIOININSSetStaus Share In profit or loss other comprehensive Shageii
total Liabllities aren pro 1 P ocl total comprehenslve income (TCI)
Name of the entity ncome (OCT)
As % of As% of As% of
Consolidated Amount Consolidated | Amount | consolidated| Amount |As% of TCI Amount
net nssets profit or loss oci

Parent
Godrej Capital Limited 108.92% 158,475.86 0.53% (15.68) 0,00% - 0.53% (15.68)
Subsidiaries
Indian
Godrej Housing Finance Limited 46,44% 67,567.21 -128.58% 3,802.15 -555.02% 21.04 -129.13% 3823.18
Godrj Finance Limited 33.17% 48,264.22 233.29%| (6,898.25), 660.43% -25.03 233.84% (6923.29)
Godrej Capital Employee Stock Option Trust 0.00% 0.38 0.00% 0.05) 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00
Non controlling Interest , Inter-company Elimination
& Consolidation Adjustments -88.52% (128,803.80) -5.24% 154.88 -5.41% 0.21 -5.24% 155.03
TOTAL IW.UQ%’ 145,501,586 Illl).l}ﬁ‘!vhl (2,956.96)| 100.00% t3.79_}l IOG.UU%I 2960.75
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Note 46: Other statutory information

6]

(ii)
(iii)

(i)
5

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for
holding any Benami property
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in anty manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Note 47: Corporate Social Responsibility

Contribution required to be made as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is NIL for the current year
and previous period.

Note 48: General

Information with regards to other matters specified in Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013 is either NIL or not applicable to
the Company for the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

{ — e —
e, .
Manish Shah Pirojsha Adi Godrej
Managing Director & CEQ Non executive Chairperson

DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432583
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ARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members Of
Guodrej Capital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind-AS Standalene Financial Statements
Opinion

We huve audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Godrej Capital Limited
(*the Company®), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then cnded and the Notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements®).

[i our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statemcnts give the information required by the Companies Act,
2003 (the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
(ndian Accounting Standards prescribed under scction 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended, (Ind-AS), and with other accounting
principles gencrally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
1he loss. wotal comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year endced on
that date.

Basis of Opinion

Ve conducied our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Staiements’ section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Elhics issued by the Tnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the cthical
requirements Lthat are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions
o the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in
aceordance with these requirements and the ICAL's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we uve obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Intormation Othier than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Compuny’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report but does not include the Standalone

Finanvial Statements and our anditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

i connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
_oiher information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

OB & o the Standalene Financial Statements ox our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
WY =, ‘p"‘; ) : = P
/ \&M Feal materially misstated.

Lo &
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information specified above, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, imptementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating eftectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Respousibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statemenits
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when il
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
hasis ot these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

s Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

L
4
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of the users of the Standalone Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2, Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in paragraph
2(h)vi} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014,

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Repert are in agreement with the books of account.

i) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
. Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the sub-paragraph b) of paragraph 2 above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b)
and paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in “Annexure B”.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid any managerial remuneration which would
require requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were nc amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™} or provide any guarantce,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the Note 26 to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representation under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.
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v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2024,

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the year ended March 31, 2024 which have
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the vear ended March 31, 2024.
3. According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination ot the records
of the Company, the Company has not patd any managerial remuneration which would require
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104607W/W 100166
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Partner % = f
Membership No.: 106548 —

UDIN: 24106548BRKCSTN3718
Place: Mumbai
Dated: Aprilt 30, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements
for the vear ended March 31, 2024)

1. a.
b
C.
d
2. a
b.
3. a
b.
4,

{A} The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(i)(a)(A) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{B) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, the Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars of intangible assets.

. The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly,

paragraph 3(i)(b}, 3(i){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures performed
by us, the Company has not revalued any of its intangible assets during the year.

. According to the information and explanations given to us, representation obtained from

Management and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2024, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have inventory. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and hence paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the Company has made investments in two subsidiaries
during the vear aggregating Rs. 94,806.33 lakhs. During the year ended March 31, 2024, the
Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order with respect to guarantee / security
{ loans or advances in the nature of loans is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the investments made are not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section
186 of the Act, with respect to investments and corporate guarantee made. The Company has
not provided any security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not accepted deposits from the public to which the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder apply. Accordingly, paragraph (v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out
by the Company. Hence, paragraph (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion:

the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including [ncome
Tax, Goods and Services Tax and Cess with the appropriate authorities and there are no
undisputed amounts which have remained outstanding as at the last day of the financial year,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The Company does
not have any dues with respect to Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Duty of
Customs and Professional Tax.

there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax and Goods and Services Tax which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account which
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company does not have any loans or other borrowings during / as at the
vear ended March 31, 2024. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(ix)(a), (b), (¢) and (f) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, The Company does not have any associates or joint ventures.,

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt mstruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally}. The Company has made private placement of shares
during the year and the requirements of section 42 of the Act have been complied with and the
funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.
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No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed i
form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of the audit report.

As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the vear.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3{(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Ind AS. The provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company
since it is not required to constitute an audit committee.

According to the information and explanations give to us, it is not mandatory for the Cempany
to have an internal audit system. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with Directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
(RBD) Act, 1934, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial or housing finance activities.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As detailed in Note 1 to the standalone financial statements, the Company is an investment
company. As on March 31, 2024, the Company has investment in equity shares of Group
Company as defined under Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and
dees not have any access to public funds. The Company is termed as an “Unregistered CIC™ as
at March 31, 2024. The Company continues to meet the criteria for non-registration.

Accerding to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group does
tot have any other core investiment companies which are registered with the RBIL

The Company has incurred cash losses in the current tinancial year aggregating Rs. 73.75 laklis.
It had not incurred any cash losses in the immediately preceding financial vear,

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year ended March 31, 2024,
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of finaucial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the tinancial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We turther
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all fiabilities falling due within a period of one vear
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations give to us, and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: [04607W/W 100166

:'2:_

i

Roshni R. Marfatia A\ )V

Puartner —

Mermbership No.: 100548
UDIN: 24106548BKCSTN3718
Place: Mumbai

Dated: April 30, 2024
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Anncxure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in Para 2 (f) “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent
Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for the
year ended March 31, 2024).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Godrej
Capital Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”)”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors.
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists.
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to {inancial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Comipany's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of Management and Directors of the Company; and

o

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls.
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opintion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 104607 W/W 100166

et )

Roshni R. Marfatia
Partner

Membership No.: 106548
UDIN: 24106548BKCSTN3718
Place: Mumbai

Dated: April 30, 2024




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)
Note As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Intangible Assets 3 213.33 237.89
Financial Assets
Investments in Subsidiaries 4 253,061.59 158,255.26
Other Tax Assets (net) 8.58 8.22
Deferred Tax Assets (nef) 5 - -
Other Non Current Assets 6 75.86 84,93
Current Assets
Financial Assets
Tnvestments 7 52.59 10,23
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 37.29 21.47
Other Financial Assets 9 30.42 5,23
TOTAL ASSETS ) 253.479.66 158.623.23
B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 10 33.30 24.55
Other Equity 11 253,414.92 158.451.31
TOTAL EQUITY 253,448.22 158,475.86
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and 5.00 3.82
small enterprises 12
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than small 1591
enterprises and micro enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities 13 - 119.24
Other Current Liabilities 14 25.44 8.40
TOTAL LIABILITIES 31.44 14737
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 253.479.66 158.623.23
Material Accounting Policies 2 .

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For & on behplf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166

AT ‘F') /VEM f/’?’? ; '*"".ff
; = — e I 7 fo = —Z; 7
d_,_,-'-“"r- " Y,
Roshni Marfatia “=7 Manish Shah Pirijsha Adi Godrej
Partner Managing Director Non executive
and CEOQ | Chairperson
Membership Number: 106548 DIN: 66422627+ DIN: 00432983

Date: 30th April 2024
Place: Mumbai

Kunal Karnani
CFO




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2624

(Amount in Lakhs)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Other Income 15 52,72 159.34
Total Income 5272 159.34
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expenses 16 88.88 06.06
Amortisation Expenses 3 24.56 7.74
Other Expenses 17 28.18 91.49
Total Expenses 141.62 165.29
(Loss) Before Tax (88.90) (5.93)
Tax Expense

Current Tax - -

Short provision for earlier years - 9.73

Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit) - -
(Loss) After Tax (88.90) (15.68)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total Comprehensive {Loss) for the year 88.90) (15.68)
Earnings Per Equity Share

Basic and Diluted in Rs. 18 (30.74) (7.17)

Face Value Per Share in Rs. 10,00 10.00

The accompanying notes forim an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number 104607W/W 100166
7
— F ; 7
" - " f

, \ = ¥ Z
Roshni Marfatia ANISH SHAH Pirojsha Adi Godrej
Partner Managing Director and Non executive

CEO Chairperson

Membership Number: 106548 DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983

Date: 30th April 2024
Place: Mumbai .

W

Kunal I-Earnani
CFO



GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Amount in Lakhs)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
(Loss) before tax (88.90) (5.95)
Adjustments for :
Employee Stock Compensation Expense 99.55 22.06
Amortisation Expenses 24.36 7.74
Net gain on fair value changes (30.88) (157.92)
Write back of provisions (9.41} -
Interest on IT refund (0.35) {1.40}
Interest income on fixed deposit (12.08) {0.03)
Qperating Cash Flow before Working Capital Changes (17.51) (135.50)
Adjustments for :
{Decrease} / Increase in Other Current Financial Liabilities (13.73) 16.07
Increase in Other Current Liabilities 26.44 12,18
{Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets (25.18) {5.23)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assets 92.07 112.87)
Cash (utilised in) Operations 20.91) (125.38)
Direct Taxes paid 10.01) 28.10
Net Cash (Utilised} in Operating Activities (A) (20.92) 97.25)
B Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Parchase of Shares in Subsidiaries (94,806.33) (68,495.00)
Purchase of Intangible Assets (119.24) (126.39)
Purchase of Investment (15,090.61) (1,16,292.14)
Sale of [nvestment 15,079.13 1,16,439.82
Proceeds fram fixed deposits with banks 13,256.00 52,61
Investment in fixed deposits with banks (13,256.00) (52.61)
Interest income received from fixed deposits with banks 12.08 0.03
Net Cash (Utilised) in Investing Activities (B) 194.924.97) 168.473.68)
C Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares 94,966.96 68,552,10
Share issue expenses (5.25) (25.78)
Net Cash Generated From Financing Activities <) 94,961.71 68,526.32
Net Increase/{Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents {(A+BHC) 15.82 — (44.61)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2147 66.08
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year ) 37.29 2147
Note:
Cash and Cash Equivalents at year end comprises:
Cash in Hand - -
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 37.29 21.47
37.29 21.47

The Cash Flows Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) on
"Statement of Cash Flows" and presents cash flows by operating, investing and financing activities.

As per our report of even date attached

For KALYANTWALLA & MISTRY LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For & on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W100166 17"

Lot

« —
Roshni Marfatia Manish Shah jsha Adi Godrej
Partner Managing Director  Non executive
and CEQ Chairperson
Membership Number: 106548 DIN: (06422627 DIN: Q0432983

Date: 30th April 2024
Place: Mumbai

Kunal Karnani
CFQ



GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital (Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Balance at the Beginning of the Year 2,45,496 24.55 1,48,124 14.81
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the Year 87,482 8.75 97,372 9.74
Balance at the end of the Year 3,32,978 33.30 1,45,496 24.55

B. Other Equity

Reserves and Surplus Other Equity
Securitles Employee Stock
Particulars Retained Earnings . Compensation Total
Premium Reserve
Reserve
Balance as at April 01, 2022 (844.83) 80,901.28 0.05 80,056.50
(Loss) for the Year {15.68) - - (15.68)
Employee Stock Compensation Expense for the Year - - 22.06 22406
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - -
Total (860.51) 80,901.28 22.11 80,062.88
Additions to Security Premium Account - 78.414.21 - 78,414.21
Share Issue Expenses (25.78) - {25.78)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (860.51) 1,59,289.71 22,11 1,58,451.31
(Loss) for the Year {88.90) - - {88.90)
Employee Stock Compensation Expense for the Year - - 99.55 99.55
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - -
Total (949.41) 1,59,289.71 121.66 1,58,461.96
Additions to Security Premium Account - 94,958.21 - 94,958.21
Share Issue Expenses (5.25) - (5.25)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1949.41) 2,54,242.67 121.66 2,53,414.92
A description of the purpases of each reserve within cyuily has been disclosed in the Note 8.1.
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.,
As per ounr report of even date attached
For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS For & on behalf ?{ the Board of Directors
Firm Registration Number 104607W/W 100166 N
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Roshni Marfatia MANISH SHAH
Partner Managing Director and CEO Nun_execunve
Chairperson
Membership Number: 106548 DIN: 06422627 DIN: 00432983
Date: 30th April 2024
Place: Mumbai ‘

Kunal Karnani
CFG



GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General Information

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)
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Corporate Information

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED ("the Company") was incorporated on September 06, 2019 having Corporate Identity Number (CIN):
U67100MH2019PLC330262 as a company limited by shares. The Company was formed with the purpose to carry on the business of an
investment company and to invest in and acquire, hold, sell, buy, subscribe or otherwise deal in shares, stocks, debentures, bonds, units,
negotiable instruments, obligations and other financial instruments issued by any company.

Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} as notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to be read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company’s
Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024 comprises of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of
Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity and Netes to Financial Statements. The Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2024 are approved by the Board of Directors on April 30, 2024.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have
been classified as current or non current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division 11 of
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees in lakhs, which is the functional currency of the Company. All financial
information has been rounded to the nearest Lakh, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement
The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis using historical cost convention and on acerual method
of aceounting.

Use of Estimates, Judgements & Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of
accounting policics that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Changes in the estimates are recognised in the year these arises.

On the reporting dates there are no assets, liabilities, income and expenses which reguire the management to make judgements, estimates
or assumptions.
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Measurement of fair values
The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial instruments,

The Company has an established contro] framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Management regularly reviews
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments, If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used
to measure fair values, then the Management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3; inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value

measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred.

2 Material Accounting Policies

a)

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

The intangible assets consists of Brand & Trademark. Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are
stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets under development”.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. Intangible assets are amortised as per
management's estimate over a period of 10 years or licence period whichever is earlier. Intangible assets are assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method are
reviewed at [east at each financial year end.

b) Fipnancial Assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In other cases, the transaction cost is
attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset.

(ii) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at
» amortised cost

* fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

» fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model
for managing financial assets.
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TQO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(iii) Equity Instruments
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value , the Company may, on initial
recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument is recognised as
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes
excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised
as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

(v) Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in FVTPL
category.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all
originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its
initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset
increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and
loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.
¢) Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
ligbility are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

(ii) Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently classified and measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities carried at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. Financial liability
is also derecognised on modification of terms of contract and when cash flows under modified terms are substantially different,

d) Revenue Recognition
Other Income:
{i) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the same is established.
(ii) Interest income is recognised on the time proportion basis.
{iii) Profit/loss on sale of investments is accounted on the trade dates.

¢) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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h)
i)

i)

GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income
tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences; being the differences between the taxable income and accounting income that originate
in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets subject to the consideration of prudence
are recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The tax effect is calculated on the accumulated timing differences at the
year end based on the tax rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the Balance Sheet date.

Investment in Subsidiaries & Associates

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of
impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On the
disposal of investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-tenm employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, performance incentives, etc., are recoghized as an expense af the undiscounted amount in the Statement of
Profit and Loss of the year in which the employee rendered the related services.

Share-based Payment

The grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment awards/options granted to employee is recognised as an employee
benefit expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the
awards. The fair value of the options at the grant date is calculated on the basis of Black Scholes Model. The amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards/options for which the related service are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards/options that meet the related service at vesting period.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilitics

Provisions are recognised in the accounts in respect of present obligation as a result of past event, the amount of which can be reliably
estimated and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on current best estimate.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, as a contingent liability.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3: Other Intangible Assets (Amount in Lakhs)
Intangible Assets
Brand &
Trademark Total
Gross Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2022 - -
Additions 245.63 245.63
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 245.63 245.63
Additions - -
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2024 245.63 245.63
Amortisation as on 1st April, 2022 - -
Amortisation expense 7.74 7.4
Disposal - -
Amortisation as on 31st March, 2023 7.74 7.74
Amortisation expernse 24.56 24.56
Disposal - -
Amortisation as on 31st March, 2024 32,30 32.30
Net Carrying Amount
As at March 31, 2023 237.89 237.89
As at March 31, 2024 213.33 213.33
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4: Non Current Financial Assets - Investments in Subsidiaries

Investment in equity instrutments at cost (fully
paid)

Godrej Housing Finance Limited

Godrej Finance Limited

Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments

(Amount in Lakhs)
Face Value As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
10 341,821,049 116,146.36 310,246,581 101,306.36
10 918,186,624 136,915.24 554,703,285 56,948.90
1,260,007,673 253,061.59 ~ 864,949,866 158,255.26
253,061.59 158,255.26

Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments
Aggregate Provision for Diminution in the Value of Investment
Market Value of Quoted Investments




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Ameunt Rs. in Lakh)
Note 5: Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 “lncome Taxes™
A. Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

ronTuevaan FORTIEVEAR
ENDED March 31, 2024 ’
2023
Current tax expense
Current period -
Changes in estimated related to prior years = 9.73
Total current tax expense (A) 9.73
Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Deferved tax expense (B) - -
Total tax expense for the year (A) +(B) r 9.73
B. Amounts r ised In other p income
Partlculars FOR THE YEAR FOR THE YEAR
ENDED March 31, 2024 © 000 Vet b
(@) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Total (2) -
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss -
Tuotal (b) s =
Total (ath}) - =
C. Reconclligtion of effective tax rate FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2624 FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2023
Amount Youge Amount Yenge
Loss before tax as per Statement of profit and loss (88.90) {5.95)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (22.38) 2517% {1.50) 25.17%
Tax effect of;
Changes in estimated related to prior years - 9.73 -163.44%
Deferred not created on unaborbed business loss 2238 -2517% 1.50 -25.17%
Total tax expense N = 0.00% 9.73 163.44%
D. Deferred tax balances
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Assets (DTA)
Busincss loss and unebsorbed Depretiation (restricted w) 12.28
Others 1.51 -
DTA restricied to 13.79 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL)
Unrealised pain on rrastual fund (0.67) -
WDV of intangible assets {1312 -
Total DTL (13791 -

Deferred tax asset an unabsorbed depreciation, business losses, unrealised net gain'{loss) on fair value changes, disallowances under w's 43B of Income Tax Al 1961 and others are
not areated o conservative basis but it restrictad to current period tax.

D. Tax balances
Particulars Asat As at
Currexnt tax assets (iet)
Advance Income Taxes (net) 8.58 822

Tatal .58 8.22

Carrent tax lisbilities (Net)

Total -




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Note 6: Other Non Current Assets

Balance with government authorities 75.66 84.73
Other Receivables 0.20 0.20
75.86 84.93

Note 7: Current Financial Assets - Investments

Investments in Mutual Funds
At fair value through profit and loss (Quoted)
ABSLI Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan 52.59 10.23

52.59 10.23

Note 8: Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

(1) Balances with Banks
-Current Accounts 37.29 21.47
37.29 21.47
Note 9: Other Financial Assets
Other Receivables 30.42 523

30.42 5.23




GODREJ CAFITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Lakhs)
Note 10: Equity Share Capital
As at As at
March 31, 2024 - March 31, 2023
No. of Shares __Amount No. of Shares Amount
Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 500,000 50.00 500,000 50,00
500,000 50.00 5005000 50.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
Equity Shares of Rs,10/- each, fully paid up 332,978 3330 245,496 24.55
332978 33.30 245196 24.55
= e
Naotes:
a) Reconciliation of Shares outstanging at the beginning and at the end of the Year -
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 _ _ March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Rs. __ No. of Shares Rs.
Equity Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 245496 24,55 148,124 14.81
Issued during the year 87,482 8.75 97,372 9.74
Outstanding at the end of the year 332,978 33.30 245 4! 24,55
b) Terms / Rights attached to Shares -

i) Equity Shares
The Company has ane class of equity shares. Each equity share entitles the holder to one vote. In the event of liquidaticn, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

¢) Details of Shares held by Holding Entity, Ultimate holding Entity, their subsidiaries and associates -
Asat Asat
Name of the Shareholder — March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Yo held ___No. of Shares % held
(i) Equity shares held by holding entity:
Godrej Industries Limited 297,939 §9.48% 214,130 87.23%
d} Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company -
Asat Asat
Name of the Sharehold March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of Shares Yo held No. of Shares % held
{i) Equity shares held by holding entity:
Godrej Industries Limited 297,939 89.48% 214,130 87.23%
PAN FIN Investments LLP 16,642 5.00% -

f) There are no equity shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitrents for the sale of shares / disinvestment.
g) i) The Company has not allotied any shares as fully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash; or
ii) Allotted as fully paid up bonus shares: or
iii} Bought back any of its equity shares.
h} There are no calls unpaid on any equity shares.

) There are no forfeited shares.

i) No shareholding of promoter as on 31st March, 2024 or as on 31st March, 2023
Note 11: Other Equity

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Securities Premium Reserve 254,242.68 159,289.72
Retained Eamings (949.41) (860.51)
Employee Stock Grants Outstanding 121.65 22.11

35341492 ~  158,451.31

Note 11.1; Natare and Purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium Reserve
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve, This Reserve can be used only for the purposes
specified in the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings
Retained Eamings are losses incurred by the Company till date.

Emplovee Stock Grants Qutstanding
The fair value of the equity-settled share based payment transactions witl employees is recognised in Profit and Loss with the corresponding credit to employee
stock grants outstanding account




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12: Current Liabilities- Trade Payables

(i) Trade Payables
Total pumstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than small enterprises and micro
enterprises

Note 12(a):Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

31st March. 2024

As at
__March 31,2024

{Amount in Lakhs)

As at

_ March 31, 2023

6.00 3,82
- 1591
6.00 19.73

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of

f payment

Not Due

1-2 yvears

2-3 vears

Ll Less than 1 vear
(i) MSME 6.00 -

(ii) Others -
{iiiy Disputed dues — MSME -
(iv) Disputed des - Others -

More than3 |

Total

6.00

31st March, 2023
Particufars

Qutstans

ling for following freriods from due date o

Not De Less than 1 year

1-2 years

f pasment

2-3 vears

Total

{iy MSME 382 -
(i) Others 9.41 6.50
{iity Disputed dues - MSME - -
|iv) Dispated dues - Others -

Note 12(b): Micre and Small Enterprises Disclosure

More than 3

3.82
1591

During the year micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED} Act) have been
identified by the Company on the basis of the information available with the Company. The disclosures pursuant to MSMED Act based on the books of

account are as under:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

mﬁncipal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each supplier at
the end of each accounting year (but within due date as per MSME act

1) Principal amount due to micto and small enterprise

1i) Interest due on above

(b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, alongwith the amount of the payment
'made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the period |
(c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006

i&) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year

() Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when|

the fnterest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterprises

Dsclosure of outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise under Trade Payables is based on the information available with the
Company regarding the status of the suppliers as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Note 13: Other Financial Liabilities

Capital verdor for Intangible

Note 14; Other Cuorrent Liabilities

Statutory Dues Payable
Other Liabilities

wég’ K 2ar %h
L?g‘ MUMBA] ;‘
PN f‘?\

A

I

-;,_zi‘

11924

- 119.24

2.24 5.40
23,20

25.44 840




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amount in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note 15: Other Income
Interest Income on deposits with banks 12.08 0.03
Net gain on financial instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss 30.88 157.91
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.35 1.40
Write back of provisions 9.41 -
52,72 159.34
Note 16: Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries and Wages 88.87 66.02
Expenses on Employee Stock Option Scheme 0.01 0.04
88.88 66.06
Note 17: Other Expenses
Rates and Taxes 0.77 5.81
Legal and Professional Fees 17.22 57.08
Advertisement and Sales Promotion expenses . 17.55
Payments to Auditors 9.37 10.86
Software Expenses 0.13 0.13
Miscellaneous Expenses (.69 0.06
28.18 91.49
Note 17.1: Payment to Auditors
a) Statutory Audit 3.82 5.36
b) Limited Review 4.91 4,90
¢) Other Services 0.65 0.60
Note 18: Earnings Per Equity Share
Net (Loss) for Computation of Basic and Diluted
Earnings per Share (88.90) (A) (15.68)
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the Year 245.,496.00 148,124.00
Add: Shares issued duting the period 87,482.00 97,372.00
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the period 332,978.00 245,496.00
Weighted Average Number of Shares 289,211.62 (B) 218,833.43
Face Value of Share in Rs. 10.00 10.00
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (30.74) (A)/(B) (7.17}
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 19: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

The contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2024 are Nil {Previous Period: Nil)
The Company has given a corporate guarantee for an amount of Rs, 25,000 lakh in favour of National Housing Bank as a security of refinance asssitance on behalf of the

Subsidiary Company. {(Previous Year Rs. Nily

Note 20; Share based payments
A) ESOP Scheme 2021:

The Gedrej Capital Employee Stock Option Scheme 2021 (“ESQP Scheme 2021”) of the Company was approved and adopted by its members a1 an Extraordinary General
Meeting held on Jannary 5, 2021. The Scheme is administered by Company's Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the Eligible Employees, who are the permanent
employess of the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, on the date of Grant of Options. The Compensation Committee of the Company would decide the entitlement of
each emnployee based on histher performance, level, grade, seniority and such other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Committee. The Exercise Price will be as
decided by the Compensation Commitee. The Opticns granted would vest afier twenty one months but not later than fifty seven months from the date of Grant of Options or as
may be decided by Compensation. committee. Exercise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of Vesting of Options or such other period as may be decided by the Compensation
Committee, within which the Employee should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the Company to him pursuant to the Option Vested in him in accordance

with the ESOP Scheme 2021.

Description of the share based payment plans:
The ex=se recoynised for employee services received duriny the

yem / period is shown in the following table:

. For the year For the year
Pai
cticulars March 31, 2024 Marsh 31, 2023
Expenes arising from eouity-settled share-based payment 0.01 0.04
Total 0.01 0.04
Movements during the year
The following table illustrates the aumber and weichted average exercise price [WAEP)| of. and movement in, share options during the year: B
For the year For the year
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number WAEP Number WAEP I
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,637 10 2,759 -
Granted during the year - - -
Lapsed during the ycar 434 10 122 10
| Ontstanding at the end of the year 2,203 10 2,637 10
The weighted average fair values of the options Rs. 4.29. The stock price of the options is Rs. 10.
The fair value of each aznion is estimated on the date of grunt using the Black-Scholes model with the followiny assumyrions:
N For the year For the year
P Ia;
SIBCIATS March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Share price == B Rs4.29 Rs 4.29
Risk free interest rate 7.00% 7.00%
Fair Value of Option 0910 1.6 0910 1.6
Volatility 42.70% 42.70%
Time to Maturity 5 years 5 years
Exercise yrice Rs, 10 Rs. [0

Expected Volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatiiity of the comparable Company's share price over the effects of non-transferability,

exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Share ojions o Jing at the end of the year have the followss

exgrry date and exercise gwices:

= . . March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price Shate Ostions Share Ophms
Janumry 29, 2021 October 28, 2029 —— 10 257.00 319.00
Felwruary 3, 2021 November 2, 202% 10 216.00 229.00 |
Febramrs 11, 2021 November 10, 2029 0 9.00 9.00
May 10,2021 = Februwry 5, 2030 10 4400 | 6100
June 22, 2021 Mearch 20, 2030 I 10 26.00 43.0¢
Tamuuwy 29, 2021 Cetober 28, 2030 10 269.00 33100
Felwunry 3. 2021 __|November 2, 2030 10 218,00 232.00
Febraury 11,2021 November 10, 2630 10 900 9.00
May 10, 2021 | Februm 32031 10 45.00 63.00
June 22, 2021 March 20, 2031 1 — 28.00 00
Janunry 29, 2021 Cctober 28, 2031 10 254.00 31200
Felwuary 3. 2021 November 2. 2031 10 202.00 215,00
Febraury 11 2021 | November 10, 2031 19 8.00 3.00
May 10, 3021 Felwusy 5, 2032 10 - 41.00 58,00
June 22, 2021 _|March 20. 2032 10 24.00 42.00
Janury 29, 2021 October 28, 2032 10 — 257.00 31900
Felayary 3, 2021 Novamber 2, 2032 10 216.00 229.00
Febranry 11_2021 Noverber 10, 2032_|_ 10 9.00 9.00
May 10,2021 = Februsiy 5, 2033 10 44,00 61.00
Juge 22, 2021 March 20, 2033 19 26.00 43.00
Total 1 2,203.00 2.637.00
’
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GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B) ESOP Scheme 2022

The Godrej Capital Emplovee Stock Option Scheme 2022 (“ESOP Scheme 20227 of the Company was approved and adopted by its members at an Anuval General Meeting held
on June 1. 2022. The Scheme is administered by Company’s Board of Directors. The Scheme applies to all the Eligible Employees, who are the permanent employees of the
Company or any Subsidiary of the Company, cn the date of Grant of Options. The Compensation Committee of the Company would decide the entitlement of cach employee
based on his’her performance, level, prade. seniority and such other parameters as may be decided by the Compensation Committee. The Exercise Price for sach Option will be
will be determined by the Beoard, The Options granted would vest after 2 minimum period of twenty four months which may be extended to thirty six months but not later than
seventy two months from the date of Grant of Options er as may be decided by Compensation committee. Exercise period is 7 (seven) years from the date of Vesting of Options
or such other period as may be decided by the Board. within which the Employee should exercise his right to apply for transfer of Equity Shares of the Company to him pursuant
to the Option Vested In lim in accordance with the ESOP Scheme 2022.

Mavements during the year

The followiny table illustrates the number and weizhted averaje exercise pvice { WAEF) of, and movement in, share options during the vear:
For the year Far the year |

Particulars l March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 1

| Number WAEP Number WAEP !
Outstanding at the beginning of the year | 934 10.00 - -
Granted during the year 1,135 10,00 234 10
Lapsed during the year 263 10.00 - -
| Outstanding at the end of the sear 1 1.806 10,00 934.00 10.00

The weighted average fair values of the options granted during the year was Rs. 1,08,556. The weighted average stock price of the options granted during the
year ended March 31, 2024 is Rs.10.

The fair value of each ogtion is estimated on the date of jrant usey the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

7 For the year
particulars | March 31, 2024
Share price 1 Rs. 80,496.49 & Rs. 1.08,556._00
Fair Value of Option Rs. 12,836.81 to Rs, 45,534.12
Risk free interest rate 6.69% to 7.34%
Volatility 16.73% to 25.79%
Time to Matority | 7 years
Exercise price | Rs. 80.496.49 & Rs. 1,08,556.00
Share ojriions outstani=g at the end of the sear have the following expsry date and exercise prices: =
. March 31, 2024
Grant Date Expiry date Exercise price Share Ogtions _
‘Wednesday, November 9. 2022 _130-Jun-31 —= 80,466.49 ]
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 = 30-Jun-32 20,496.49 §
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-Jun-33 80,496.49 g |
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-Tun-34 0,496.,49 B
Wednzsdday, November 9, 2022 30-Ag=-32 80,496.49 | 126
Wednzslsy, November 9, 2022 30-Am-33 | 80,496.49 126
Wedn=sdwy, November 9, 2022 30'At"3-4 80,496.49 125
Wedn=sisy, November 9, 2022 30-Agpr-35 £0,496.49 126
Wednescdes, November 8, 2022 30-Nov-32 80,496.49 - 20.-
Wednesday, November 9, 2022 30-Nov-33 80,496.49 | 20
Wednsaddiy, November 9, 2022 30-Nov-34 £0,496.49 20
Wedn=uisy, November 9, 2022 30-Nov-35 80,496.49 20
Fridey, March 10, 2023 _ |28-Feb-23 80,496.49 32
Friday, March 10, 2023 _ 28-Feb-34 80,456.49 32
Frictzy, March 10, 2023 28-Feb-35 80,466.49 32
Friilsy, March 10, 2023 20-Feb-36 £0,496.49 32
Monday, July 3. 2023 . 31-Mar-33 | 108.556.00 174
Morday, Jufy 3, 2023 31-Mar-34 108.556.00 174
Monday July 3. 2023 31-Mar-33 108,556.00 174
Morday, July 3, 2023 31-Mar-36 — 108.556.00 174
Tuesday, September 5, 2023 31-hal-33 108.556.00 40
Tuesday, Septerber 5, 2023 31-hil-34 108.556.00 40
Tuesday September 5, 2023 31-Jul-35 108,556.00 E 38
Tuesday. September 5, 2023 31-Jul-36 108,556.00 40
Morday. Janusry 8, 2024 31-Dec-33 108,556.00 b |
Monday. Janunry 8, 2024 _|31-Dec-34 108,556.00 6
Monday, Jenury 8. 2024 21-Dec-35 108.556.00 | 3
Monday, Janiuty 82024 31-Dec-36 108.556.00 6
Saturitay, March 23,2024 28-Feb-34 108.556.00 46
Satwrday, March 23, 2024 . 28-Feb-35 108.556.00 47
Saturday. March 23, 2024 29-Feb-36 = 108,556.00 46
Sanwday, March 23, 2024 28-Feb-37 108.556.00 46
Total 1,806.00
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Note 21: Related party disclosure as required by Ind AS 24

{a} Name of Related Parties

GODREJ CAFITAL LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[Amount in Lakhs|

Companies under
Common Onwership

Name of related party Nature of relationship
Godrej Industries Limited Holding Company
Godrej Housing Finance Linited Subsidiary
Godrej Fmance Limited Subsidiary
Godrej Capital Employee Stock Optien Trust Subsidiary
Kunal Karnani CFO
Manish Shah Mumaping Directer and CEQ
ih) Tr with related parties .
Sr. Ne. Nature of transaction Holding Entity / Subsidiary Key Manag'e —
| Company Personnel - Director
i} |Issue of share capitsl & security permium 94,966.96 =
Previous Perlod | 68,500.10
ii) | Investment in subsidiaries 94,806.33
Previous Period - 68,495 .00
iii) | Reimbursement of Cost paid to 80.53
Previous Period 75.06
iv) | Reimbursement of Cost recovered from 49.54
Previous Period 22.02
v) |Reimbursement of TDS 13.93
Previous Period - -
vi} |Amount Given to Trust -
Previous Period o.1c¢
vii) |Outstanding Balance - Receivable 30.42
Previous Period 4.94
viii) | Cutstanding Balance - Payable 2330
Previous Period 6.5G
ix}| Comgnwrale Guarantee Given | E— 25,000.00
{c| Significant Related Parry Disclosure
. For the year ended | For the year ended
Sr. No. Nature of transaction March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) | Investment in subsidiaries
Godrej Housing Finance Limited 14,840.00 47,500.00
Godrej Finance Limited 7%,966.33 20,995.00
i} Rembursement of Cost paid to
Godrej Finance Limited 6747 62.30
Godrej Housing Finance Limited 13,06 12.75
i} Retmbursement of Cost recovered from
Godrej Finance Limited 76.70 17.18
Godrej Housing Finance Limited 22.84 435
iv)| Purchase of Brand logo
Godrej Properties Limited 243,63
v)| Corporate Guarantee Giver
(Godrej Housiny Finance Limited ] 25.000.00 -




GODRET CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 22: Fair Value Measurement
Refer note 1 sub note (g) and note 2 sub note {b} and (c) for accounting policy on Financial Instruments,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged m a curvent transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Accounting, classification and fair values
Carrying amounts and fair value of financiel assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are as follows,

As at March 31,2024 . . . Amount in Lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL | FVTOCI A“‘c"’]':se" Total Levell | Level2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets i o i
Non Current
Investroents 253,061.59 - 253,061.59 - 253,061.59 253,061.539
Current
Investments 52.59 - 52.59 5259 - - 5259
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3729 37.29 - - - -
Other Financial Assets . o | 3042 30.42 . - y -

253114.18 . 67.70 . 251:3..181.89 52.59 - 253,061.59 253,114.18
Financial liabilities
Current
Trade payables - g - - - -
(Other Financial Liabilities | - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 |Amount in Laihs|
Particulars Carrying Amount K Fair Value

evieL | Fvroct | AU ol | Leval | Levet2 | Levar Total

Financial assets |
Non Current
Investments 158,255.26 L 158,255.26 - - 158,255.26 158,255.26
Cuwrrent |
Investments 10.23 - . 10.23 10.23 10.23
Cash and cash equivalents - 2147 2147 - -
Other Financial Assets - = 523 3423 - - -

158,265.4% - 26. 70 158,292.19 10.23 - | 158.255.26 158.265.49

e Ly e
Financial liabilities
Current
Trade payables - - 15.91 1591 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities - - 119.24 119.24 - - -
L | - 135.15 135.15 - I | = S

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial assets, other financial Gabilities approximate their carrying value largely due to short term
maturities of these mstruments.
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GODREJS CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 23: Financial Risk Management

(a) Financial risk Management objectives and policies
The Company's business activities are exposed 10 a variety of financial risks, namely Credit risk, Liquidity risk, Currency risk. Interest risk, The Company's Board of
Directors has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company's risk management framework,

The Board of Directors has an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. Risk management is integral to the
whole business of the Company, The Company has a system of controls in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of
managing the risks.

The management continually monitors the Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.

(b} Credit risk

Credit rigk is the potential financial loss resulting from: the failure of a party to settle its financial and contractual obligations to the Company as and when they fall due. The
Company's eredit risk is primarily attributable to cash and cash equivalents. The financial assers represent cash and cash equivalents. Bank accounts are maintained / carried
out with Banks having high credit ratings.

{¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficikty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial Labilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when they are
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial ratios and takes inte
account the accessivility of cash and cash equivalents.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities: {Amount in Lakhs)
Contractual Cash Flows
Particulars Carrying Total Within Within
Amount 1 year 2.5 years
As at March 31, 2024
Other Financial Liabilities . . - -
Trade payables 6.00 6,00 6.00 -
Total 6,00 6.00 6.00 -
As at March 31, 2023
Other Financial Liabilities $19.24 119.24 115.24 -
Trade payables 19.73 19.73 19,73 -
Total 138.97 138.97 138,97 -
(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign currency will affect the Company's income. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk

Interest rate risk
The Company has no exposure to changes in interest rate as it has no interest-bearing financial mstraments with variable interest rates.

Foreign eurrency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no
exposure to significant forsign currency risk as it has ne financial assets and lisbilities in foreign currency.

Note 24: Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s ¢apital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximizes Company’s
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and adjusts it, in light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the vear ended 31 March 2024 and for period ended 31 March 2023.

The Company’s net debt to adjusted equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows: (Amount Rs, in Lakh)
Asat As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total Lighilities 3144 147.37
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (37.29) {21.47)
Less: Current Investment (52.59) {10.23)
Net debt 158.44) 115.67
Total equity 253,448.22 158,475.86
Net debt 10 adjusted equity ratio {0.00) 0.00

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year, The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TQO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note: 25 Disclosure of Ratios

Particulars Formulas For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current ratio = Current Assets /Current liabilities 383 0.25
Debt Equity ratio = Total Debt / Shareholders™ Equity NA NA
Debt service coverage ratio = Annual Net Operating Income / Total Debt Service NA NA
Return on equity ratio = Net Income/ Shareholder’s Equity (0.00) (0.00)
Inventory Turnover ratio = Cost of goods sold/Average [nventory N/A N/A
Trade payables turnover ratio | = Net Credit Purchases / Average Accounts Payable N/A N/A
Return on capital emploved | = EBIT/{ Total Assets- Current Liabilities) {0.00) 10.00)

Note: Change in current ratio is more than 1427% in 23-24 vis a vis 22-23 on account of reduction in payable for intangible assets in relation
to acquisition of Brand and Trade name and Increase in Bank balance, Investments in Mutual Funds and Other Receivables in the current
year.

Note 26: Disclosure under Rule 11(e)(ii)
{Amount in Lakhs)

Amount
. of fund . . -
Name of Entity Date Relationship CIN Registered Address

advanced/

invested

GODREJ ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
(EAST) MUMBAI
400079

GODREJ ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
(EAST) MUMBAI
400079

GODREJ ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
(EAST) MUMBAI
400079

GODREJ ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
(EAST) MUMBAL
400079
GODRET ONE,
PIROJSHANAGAR,
EASTERN EXPRESS
HIGHWAY, VIKHROLI
(EAST) MUMBAI
400079

Godrej Housing Finance Limited 19-Jun-23 14,840 Subsidtary U65100MH2018PLC31
5359

05-Jun-23 20,600 Subsidiary U67120MH1992PLC06
5457

21-Sep-23 28,497 Subsidiary U67120MH1992PLCO6
5457

Godrej Finance Limited

30-Sep-22 1,498 Subsidiary U67120MH1992PLCO6
3457

29-Feb-24 29,971 Subsidiary U67120MH1992PLCO6
5457




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment Information (Amount in Lakh)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Sr No. Particulars Audited Audited

1 Segment Revenue

Investing & Other activities 52.72 159.34
2 Segment Results

Investing & Other activities (88.90) (15.68)
3 Segment Assets

Investing & Other activities 253,484.71 158,627.19
4 Segment Liabilities

Investing & Other activities 36.49 151.33

ZORERN




GODREJ CAPITAL LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 27: Corporate Social Responsibility
Contribution required to be made as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is NIL for the current year and previous period.

Note 28: Other statutory information

.. The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any
W Benami property
(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off
{iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaties)

with the understanding that the Intermediary shalk:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed
{v) as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of

the Income Tax Act, 1961

{iv)

Naote 29: General
Information with regards to other matters specified in Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013 is either NIL or not applicable to the Company for the year.
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CFO
Date: 30th April 2024






